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Introduction

 


This guide, along with the
various others produced by Lyn Wilkerson and Caddo Publications
USA, are based on the American Guide Series. Until the mid-1950’s,
the U.S. Highway System provided the means for various modes of
transport to explore this diverse land. To encourage such
explorations, the Works Projects Administration under President
Franklin D. Roosevelt and the Federal Writers Project created the
American Guide Series. This series of books were commissioned by
the Federal Government to capture the culture and history of the
United States and provide the direction necessary for travelers to
explore it. Each state created a commission of writers who
canvassed their respective territories for content to submit. The
preliminary works were then sent to Washington D.C. for final
assembly in to a standard format. The result was a travel guide for
each state. The series spread to include guides for important
cities as well. After the State Guides were complete, the concept
of a national guide was developed. However, it would not be until
1949, with the backing of Hastings House Publishing, that a true
national guide would be created. Through several rounds of
condensing, the final product maintained much of the most essential
points of interest and the most colorful material.

To quote from the
California edition of the American Guide Series, “romance has been
kept in its place. . .” The intent of this guide is to provide
information about the historic sites, towns, and landmarks along
the chosen routes, and to provide background information and
stories for what lies in-between. It is not our desire to dramatize
the history or expand on it in any way. We believe that the
character and culture of this state, and our country as a whole,
can speak for itself. The guide has been created, not for just
travelers new to the city, but for current residents who may not
realize what lies just around the corner in their own neighborhood.
The goal of Caddo Publications USA is to encourage the exploration
of the rich history that many of us drive by on a regular basis
without any sense it existed, and to entertain and educate so that
history will not be lost in the future.
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Blue Ridge
Parkway-Virginia




Much of the Blue Ridge area
of Virginia is characterized by broad areas of undulating relief at
a relatively high elevation. Into that relief have been cut
numerous ravines and broad valleys. In the valleys or "coves"
deeply incised into the flanks of the uplands, settlement is
confined to the valleys. Roads follow the valleys and farms are
situated in the valleys and minor hollows and perched on the lower
hill slopes. The farms are small and many of the clearings lie on
extremely steep hillsides. Some of the gentler slopes are occupied
by orchards; but elsewhere general farming at a rather low level
prevails.

Owing to the rugged beauty
of these wooded slopes (about two-thirds of the land is in forest)
and the ease of accessibility by automobile over modern roads, the
area is easily visited by tourists. The scenic highway atop the
southern Appalachians, the Blue Ridge parkway, paralleled and at
times joined by a U. S. numbered highway, runs across the map.
Several scenic viewpoints designated "overlook," are indicated
along it. Heavily trafficked by hikers, a segment of the
Maine-to-Georgia Appalachian Trail crosses the area here utilizing
secondary roads.i

 


The travel route for the
Blue Ridge Parkway begins where the Parkway and Skyline Drive come
together, at U.S. Highway 250 and Exit 99 on Interstate Highway 64.
This first portion of the Blue Ridge Parkway is identified as
Section 1-B, from Rockfish Gap to Humpback Gap. Construction was
begun on July 8th, 1939, with construction
complete on November 20th, 1940.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
250

The commission appointed
to select a site for the University of Virginia met on August
1st to the
4th, 1818, in the tavern
that stood nearby this junction. Among the 21 members present were
former presidents Thomas Jefferson and James Madison, as well as
judges Spencer Roane, Archibald Stuart, and Creed Taylor. The
commissioners chose Charlottesville over Lexington and Staunton for
the site of the university. The tavern at which they met was owned
by Samuel Leake (1790-1858) and Walter Leake (1792-1859). Enlarged
later, as part of the Mountain Top Hotel and Springs, the popular
tavern burned in 1909.

 


Side Trip to
Waynesboro (U.S. Highway 250
West)

Waynesboro
(3.4 miles west on U.S. 250)

A small hamlet had gathered
here before the American Revolution on this early road to the West.
Chastellux found a tavern here, “the worst in all America . . .
Mrs.Teaze, the mistress of the house, was sometime since left a
widow; she appears also to be in fact the widow of her furniture,
for surely never was a house so badly furnished.” On March
2nd,
1865, General Philip H. Sheridan, with a force of Union cavalry,
drove General Jubal A. Early and 1,000 Confederates from their
strategic position nearby. Early's force was captured almost to a
man, but the general and his staff escaped to the woods. This was
one of the last contests of the war in western Virginia.
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About 1895, citizens of
Waynesboro were victims of an oil hoax. A group proclaiming it had
found oil in the vicinity began to sell stock and made a show of
drilling. As the work progressed with no signs of oil, the sale of
stock began to lag. One night several barrels of oil were poured
into the drilled hole. The next day this hopeful evidence
stimulated sales, and several business men retired to enjoy their
oil royalties. The only product of the well was good drinking
water.

 


Point of
Interest:

Fishburne Military
School

This boys' preparatory
school was established in 1879.

 


Side Trip to
Charlottesville (U.S. Highway 250 East,
U.S. Highway 250 Business East)

Charlottesville
(19.2 miles east on U.S. 250, 2.7 miles east on
U.S. 250 Business)

As the seat of Albemarle
County, Charlottesville has been an important crossroads since late
Colonial times. Its Main Street follows Three Chopt Road, one of
the first trails from Tidewater to the West. In 1735, following the
first patents for land hereabout in 1727, Abraham Lewis received
800 acres that embraced the present grounds of the university, and
Nicholas Meriwether, 1,020 acres including land on which the
eastern part of Charlottesville stands. Two years later William
Taylor patented 1,200 acres between the Meriwether and Lewis
grants, owned later by Richard Randolph. Meanwhile, Peter Jefferson
acquired the estates of Shadwell and Monticello. Few patentees,
however, settled upon their estates. Thomas Jefferson said that his
father “was the third or fourth settler, about the year 1737, of
the part of the county in which I live.” In 1761, the county
purchased a 1,000 acre tract from Richard Randolph, built a new
courthouse, and laid out 50 acres in streets and lots adjacent to
the courthouse square. In 1762, when it was “represented” that “a
town for the reception of traders . . . would be of great advantage
to the inhabitants” of the county, the general assembly
“established a town,” which was named for Queen Charlotte, wife of
George III. The county sold the town lots, and taverns and stores
sprang up around the courthouse. Other acres of public grounds were
sold as “outlots,” for agricultural use by town residents. Until
well into the nineteenth century, the Rivanna River was
Charlottesville's chief avenue for commercial traffic.

The tumult of war has never
seriously disturbed Charlottesville, although the American
Revolution touched it immediately on two occasions. The
establishment of “The Barracks” nearby for the “Convention Troops,”
about 4,000 prisoners taken when Burgoyne surrendered at Saratoga
in 1777, aroused no bitter feeling. These troops, English officers
and soldiers and a large number of Hessian mercenaries, arrived in
January of 1779 and remained until October of 1780, but many of the
Germans escaped into the mountains, where their names survive among
mountain folk today. Colonel Banastre Tarleton's raid in 1781 was a
more serious business. Cornwallis hoped to capture the most
important Revolutionary leaders and send them to England.
Ex-governor Jefferson, Acting Governor Fleming, and members of the
general assembly, warned in the nick of time by Jack Jouett,
hastily fled to Staunton. Tarleton and his men destroyed military
stores, clothing, and tobacco, raided the county courthouse, and
destroyed all the order books. Court records, dating from 1748,
escaped destruction.

In its youth,
Charlottesville and the county of which it was the social and
commercial center, produced several men, besides Thomas Jefferson,
whose lives contributed richly to the Nation. In order to be near
Jefferson, James Monroe came to Charlottesville in 1789 and later
moved to Ashlawn by Monticello. James Madison was a frequent
visitor here. Two men whose expeditions identify Charlottesville
with the opening of the Great West were George Rogers Clark, born
at Buena Vista, two miles east, and Meriwether Lewis, born near
Ivy, about seven miles west. Though situated on one of the main
east-west roads, Charlottesville remained a small social center
until after the first quarter of the nineteenth century. Thomas
Jefferson said in 1822: “In our village . . . there is a good
degree of religion, with a small spice of fanaticism. We have four
sects, but without either church or meeting house. The courthouse
is the common temple, one Sunday in the month to each. Here
Episcopalian and Presbyterian, Methodist and Baptist meet together.
. . . listen with attention and devotion to each others preachers,
and all mix in society in perfect harmony.” Construction of the
first church in the town was begun in 1824. When the university was
opened a year later Charlottesville contained “a courthouse, a half
finished church, and three or four taverns, which constitute the
whole of its public buildings,” and its inhabitants numbered about
600.

The War Between the States
only brushed Charlottesville. Most of the university buildings were
turned into hospitals, and temporary structures were erected, in
which university doctors looked after the wounded. During the last
year of the war, Union forces under Sheridan occupied the town, but
did little damage. After the Virginia Central Railroad, later the
Chesapeake & Ohio, reached Charlottesville in 1848, putting an
end to river traffic, industries were established on a modest
scale. One of these, the Charlottesville Woolen Mills, reorganized
in 1868, still survives. In 1800, Charlottesville was chartered as
a town. In 1888, it was chartered as a city, its population then
being 4,200.

 


Points of
Interest:

Albemarle County
Courthouse (Jefferson Street and Park
Street)

Half of the structure was
built in 1803, the front part was erected in 1860, and the portico
was added in the early 1870’s. The archives contain some of
Jefferson's correspondence. The north wing was used at first as a
church, “the common temple” to which Jefferson referred. Madison,
Monroe, and Jefferson worshiped here. Old red brick buildings, in
which judges and lawyers of Charlottesville still have offices,
once crowded more completely around the square and the streets
leading out from it on the south side. Albemarle County was cut
from Goochland in 1744 and embraced a wide area on both sides of
the James River. Its first seat, established near Scottsville to
the south, served until 1761, when the present site was chosen. The
legislature met in the first courthouse in 1781. Pillory, stocks,
and a whipping post stood in the square when it was enclosed in
1792.

Site of the Old Swan
Tavern (Jefferson Street and Park
Street)

This site was later
occupied by the Red Land Club in a small red brick structure. The
tavern was built about 1773 by John Jouett, father of Jack, whose
warning saved Thomas Jefferson and the assembly. Jack Jouett moved
to Kentucky in 1782. His father died in 1805

Old Armory of the Monticello
Guards (Market Street and E.
5th Street)

This large brick hall was
built in 1895. The Monticello Guard is the successor to the
Albemarle County Militia, organized in 1745 with Peter Jefferson as
lieutenant colonel, and has taken part in many battles. In 1824,
when LaFayette visited Monticello, the organization was
rechristened the La Fayette Guard. On ceremonial occasions the
guard turns out in its Colonial uniform with cocked hats, knee
breeches, and leggings. The old armory was superseded by a new
building two blocks eastward.

The Farm (East end of Jefferson Street)

This residence, erected in
1825, is a square brick house with a flat-roofed, one-story
portico. Close by is a small stucco-covered house with large end
chimneys, built before the Revolution on the Nicholas Meriwether
estate. The older house was the home of Meriwether's heir and
grandson, Colonel Nicholas Lewis. Tarleton, dashing up from the
ford where the woolen mill now stands, greeted Mrs.Lewis
with,”Madam, you dwell in a little paradise.” He established
headquarters here for the single night he spent in Charlottesville
sleeping wrapped in his cloak on the parlor floor.

University of
Virginia (West end of Main
Street)

Founded by Thomas Jefferson
in 1818, this institution occupies a large, roughly triangular
tract o rising ground between the convergence of Fry's Springs and
Ivy Roads. Most of its fine buildings are designed in a classical
style peculiarly American. In spite of quantities of ancient trees
shading the grounds, every white portico of nearly ioo red brick
structures is framed at some angle by a vista. In the center on the
highest ground are Jefferson's buildings set in four parallel lines
separated by lawns and gardens. A rotunda joining the northern end
of the terraced central rectangle serves as focal point.
Jefferson's “quadrangle” was closed by the erection of Stanford
White's group at the south end of the Lawn in 1898.

In 1814, Jefferson, then
retired from public life at Monticello and able to give most of his
time to educational interests, was elected a trustee of the
Albemarle Academy, a school for boys incorporated in 1803. As early
as 1779 he had sponsored a bill to establish a university. Under
the pressure of his friend, Joseph Carrington Cabell, the general
assembly authorized in 1816 the establishment of Central College at
a point just west of Charlottesville. The cornerstone of the first
building, now Pavilion VII on West Lawn, was laid on October
6th,
1817. In 1818, Jefferson's bill to provide a university, though
much mutilated, passed the general assembly, and a commission was
named to select the site. Under Jefferson's influence, the
commission recommended Central College as the place for the
university and the legislature in 1819 confirmed the decision. The
official corporate name of the university, chosen then, remains
“The Rector and Visitors of the University of Virginia.” Jefferson,
rector of the board of visitors until his death, was the builder,
administrator, and dominating power of the institution. When the
first session opened in March of 1825 there were 40 students and 7
faculty members. Before Jefferson's death on July
4th,
1826, the number of students had increased to more than 140, the
two lawns and two ranges were complete, and the rotunda was nearly
finished. Jefferson introduced several innovations. For the first
time in America higher education was independent of a
church.

 


Junction with Elk Mountain
Road (2 miles west of U.S. 250 on Blue
Ridge Parkway)

West of this junction is
Afton Mountain. Near this site on September 21st, 1933, Richard C. duPont was launched from Afton Mountain in
his Bowlus sailplane, Albatross. Four hours and fifty
minutes later, he landed at Frederick, Maryland, establishing a
United States distance record for sail planing of 121.6 miles,
almost double the previous U.S. record of 66 miles.

 


Humpback Gap
(6 miles west of U.S. 250 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This is the start of
Section 1-C, which began construction on August
17th,
1939, and was completed on October 13th, 1941.

 


Reeds Gap
(CR 664) (7.6 miles west of Humpback Gap on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Nellysford and
Rockfish Church (County Road 664 East,
Virginia Highway 151 North)

Nellysford
(5.7 miles east on CR 664, 2.9 miles north on VA
151)

William Harris Crawford
was born in this vicinity, February 24th, 1772. Early in life he was taken to Georgia and became a
leading politician of the era. He was United States Senator;
Minister to France; Secretary of War and of the Treasury;
Candidate, 1824, for the Presidency, which was decided by the House
of Representatives.

Rockfish Church
(5.7 miles east on CR 664, 5.3 miles north on VA
151)

The Rockfish meetinghouse
was established here by 1746, making it one of the oldest
Presbyterian churches in the region. James McCann conveyed land for
a church and school. Samuel Black became the first pastor of the
church in 1747. Thomas Mason built a new frame structure for the
congregation about 1771. The present Greek Revival brick structure
was constructed by 1854. Further modifications have been made to
the building and grounds since that time, including an addition
completed in 1995.

 


Junction with County Road
814 (Love) (

This is the start of
Section 1-D. Section 1-D began construction on May
17th,
1939, and was completed on November 7th, 1940.

 


Junction with Virginia
Highway 56 (11 miles west of CR 814 (Love)
on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

Virginia Highway 56 lies at
the beginning of Section 1-E, which began construction on April
4th,
1941, and was completed on October 14th, 1942.

 


Side Trip to Massies
Mill (Virginia Highway 56 East)

Massies Mill
(15.8 miles east on VA 56)

 


Point of
Interest:

Level Green
(One mile west on Level Green Road)

Level Green was the home of
Major Thomas Massie (1747-1834). Massie was commander of the Sixth
Virginia Regiment of Infantry, later an Aide to Governor Thomas
Nelson at the siege of Yorktown, and one of the first magistrates
of Nelson County when it was formed in 1807.

 


Side Trip to Steele’s
Tavern (Virginia Highway 56
West)

Steele’s Tavern
(5.1 miles west on VA 56)

Cyrus Hall McCormick
(1809-1884) was the inventor of the mechanical reaper.
The first public demonstration of the reaper, as
constructed by Cyrus, took place in July of 1831, and was a
success, although he did not patent it until after Obed Hussey
announced his invention in 1834. McCormick's reaper contained the
straight reciprocating knife, guards, reel, divider, platform,
main-drive wheel, and other innovations that are essential features
of every satisfactory harvesting machine. His early machines were
made for local use, and not until more than 10 years later did he
begin in earnest to expand his market. In 1847, he built his
Chicago factory; in 1851 he introduced the reaper into England and,
subsequently, into other European countries. He continued to patent
improvements and demonstrated his machine in the field, often in
competition with Hussey's reaper. After 1850, many strong
competitors appeared and Hussey gave up, while only McCormick's
unusual business ability kept him in the running. He was quick to
purchase promising inventions and added the self-rake, hand binder,
and twine binder.ii

 


Point of
Interest:

Walnut Grove
(County Road 606)

Walnut Grove is the
landmark for the mechanical reaper. The top of the Blacksmith Shop
has been converted into a museum which houses a model of a
mechanical reaper.

 


Junction with Irish Creek
Road (2.2 miles west of VA 56 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

The Irish Creek area was a
rich tin mining region. The remains of the Irish Creek Railway are
evident from the Yankee Horse Ridge Parking Area.

 


Yankee Horse Ridge Parking
Area (7 miles west of Irish Creek Road on
the Blue Ridge Parkway)

Yankee Horse supposedly is
where a hard-riding Union man's horse fell and had to be
shot.

 


Junction with County Road
605 (3 miles west of Yankee Horse Ridge
Parking Area on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

This junction, at the head
of the Pedlar River, begins Section 1-F. Section 1-F began
construction on April 14th, 1940. It was completed on
August 1st, 1942.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
60 (8 miles west of CR 605 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

In 1938, during the
celebration of the 150th anniversary of the United States
Constitution, the Virginia Daughters of the American Revolution
sponsored the planting of Constitution Forest in this area. With
the help of the Civilian Conservation Corps and the United States
Forest Service, the memorial forest commemorates the Virginia
framers of the Constitution. In 1987, the 45 acres of red and white
pine seedlings have matured to a forest that provides protection
for birds and other wildlife as well as for the watershed of the
James River.

 


Side Trip to Buena
Vista (U.S. Highway 60 West)

Buena Vista
(4.2 miles west on U.S. 60 at U.S. 501)

Buena Vista was one of the
boom towns brought forth by a promotion company in the last decades
of the nineteenth century, when paper towns were being created
throughout western Virginia. A report of 1889 reads, “The lande
estate of the Buena Vista Company has been made by the
consolidation of the historic iron and agricultural lands of Sam'l
F. Jordan, known as the Buena Vista property, the Green Forest farm
and the Hart's Bottom farm; all together making about 13,000 acres
. . . Most of the lands of Green Forest and Hart's Bottom,
amounting to over 1,000 acres, have been laid off into streets and
building lots.”

 


Point of
Interest:

Green Forest
1790 (Northern edge of
town)

This is the former home of
Arthur Glasgow, forefather of Ellen Glasgow, a noted Virginia
novelist. She spent her summers and wrote many of her books
here.

 


Junction with Robinson Gap
Road (4.3 miles west of U.S. 60 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

Robinson Gap was the start
of Section 1-G, which began construction on September
20th,
1941, and was completed on December 1st, 1942.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
501 (13.5 miles west of Robinson Gap Road
on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

This section leading out of
the James River Valley is 1-H. Section 1-H was started on April
13th,
1940, and was completed on November 19th, 1941, nineteen days before
the Japanese attack on Pearl Harbor.

 


Side Trip to Glasgow
(U.S. Highway 501 North)

Balcony Falls Dam
(8.2 miles north on U.S. 501)

Balcony Falls is a series
of rapids in the beautiful gap, four miles long, cut by the James
River through the Blue Ridge. Because the James and the Potomac are
the only streams offering possibilities of water transportation
between Chesapeake Bay and the valleys beyond the range, plans were
made for their utilization as early as 1772. Although the first
section of the James River Canal was opened in 1789, more than 50
years had passed and $8,000,000 had been spent before the canal was
carried beyond Balcony Falls. However, sluice navigation was being
used by 1816. Long narrow batteaux loaded with produce were guided
through the tortuous channel by boatmen whose services drew high
pay. The railroad through this pass was completed in
1881.

Glasgow (9.1 miles north on U.S. 501 at VA 130)

Glasgow is the remnant of a
town established in 1890. General Fitzhugh Lee was president of the
promotion company. Neither the large hotel nor the power plant,
hopefully built, was ever operated, and industries failed to
materialize.

In December of 1742,
Captain John McDowell and seven militiamen were killed nearby in
the first fight with the Indians in this vicinity. Captain McDowell
had entertained the natives for a day on apparently friendly terms.
But after the warriors left, they hunted for a week or more along
the South River and pillaged in the neighborhood. Captain McDowell
raised a body of 34 men to expel the Indians from the area. In the
fight that followed, there were casualties on both
sides.

Heavy rains in late
January of 1854 left the James River and the treacherous Balcony
Falls in full flood. On January 21st, the canal boat Clinton
and its passengers became stranded in the raging
waters. Frank Padget, a skilled boatman and slave, led four other
men to rescue them. In a heroic attempt to save the last passenger,
Padget drowned, unable to fight the rushing current. Captain Edward
Echols, who witnessed Padget's act, was so moved he commissioned
the construction of a granite obelisk monument that was erected
beside Lock 16 of the Blue Ridge Canal. It now stands here in
Glasgow's Centennial Park.

 


Point of
Interest:

Glasgow Manor

This residence was built in
1810 by Joseph Glasgow, a son of Arthur Glasgow. The house was
extensively remodeled at the time the town was
established.

 


Side Trip to Eagle’s
Eyrie (U.S. Highway 501 South)

Eagle’s Eyrie
(8.6 miles south on U.S. 501)

Eagle’s Eyrie, on the crest
of the mountains, is a large house built during World War I by
Baron Quarles von Offert, a German refugee.

 


Appalachian Trail
(12.3 miles west of U.S. 501 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

Apple Orchard Mountain,
directly south of this crossing and following to the right of the
parkway, is the beginning of Section 1-J. Construction of Section
1-J began on July 14th, 1939, and was completed on
December 12th, 1940.

 


Junction with Virginia
Highway 43 South (Peaks Road) (9.5 miles
west of the Appalachian Trail on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

This area is known as the
Peaks of Otter. Three peaks are represented by this name; Sharp
Top, Flat Top, and Harkening Hill. The three Peaks of Otter (all
approximately 4,000 feet in altitude) form three massive blue humps
on the skyline.

Construction of Section
1-K, which began in this valley, started on September
16th,
1939, and was completed on November 1st, 1941. Three segments west of
this one, from Blackhorse Gap to Adney Gap, were not completed
until after World War II.

 


Blackhorse Gap
(11.6 miles west of VA 43 South on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

Blackhorse Gap is the start
of Section 1-L. Construction began here on June
10th,
1946, and was completed on October 4th, 1950.
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Junction with U.S. Highway
460 and U.S. Highway 221 (8.2 miles west of
Blackhorse Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

This interchange is the
beginning of Section 1-M, which began construction on July
30th,
1962, and was completed on July 23rd, 1965.

 


Side Trip to Roanoke
(U.S. Highway 221 South)

Roanoke (8.4 miles south on U.S. 221)

The country around Roanoke
was once a favorite hunting ground of the Indians, attracted by the
abundance of game drawn to the salt deposits, or 'licks,' within
the limits of the present city. In 1654 Abraham Wood passed this
way, and in 1671 his son Thomas came through, having set out from
the Indian town of Appomattox “in order to discover the South Sea,”
he wrote in his diary.

When Augusta County was
formed in 1738, the valley of the Roanoke lay within its
boundaries. Settlements were made here as early as 1740. In 1749,
Dr. Thomas Walker of Albemarle organized the Loyal Land Company and
on a trip to explore the country found squatters in the valley. At
the “Great Lick, they bought corn for their horses from Michael
Campbell” and farther on “lodged at James Robinson's.” The French
and Indian War almost wrecked these frontier settlements, yet a few
stalwart people continued to hold their homes, and others came to
set up homesteads. About the turn of the century, Old Lick, already
a stage on the Great Road down the valley, became an important
crossroads when it was reached by the turnpike running west from
Lynchburg.

In 1834, the community made
its first effort to become a town. Streets were laid out and lots
were sold, but only the little town of Gainsborough materialized.
Salem, and not Big Lick, was made the seat of Roanoke County when
it was created in 1838. In 1852, the Virginia & Tennessee
Railroad built a depot at Big Lick and a few shops and stores
followed immediately. In 1858, Isham M. Ferguson established a
tobacco factory in the village, and several years later a canning
factory was put in operation. Big Lick was chartered as a town in
1874; John Trout was elected mayor; the council met regularly in
Rorer's Hall; and the town even erected a calaboose 12 feet square.
Four years later, The Big Lick News
printed its first edition.

In 1881, it was noised
abroad that two railroads, the Shenandoah Valley and the Norfolk
& Western, were seeking a junction point. John C. Moomaw
suggested that the council offer inducements that would bring the
terminal to Big Lick and started on a 50-mile ride to Lexington,
where he was to confer the next day with railroad officials. He had
arranged that a messenger convey to him at Buchanan in the morning
details of the town's offer. The council promised a terminal and
$10,000. Charles W. Thomas rode to Buchanan and delivered the
papers to Mr. Moomaw, who hurried on to Lexington. The junction was
awarded to Big Lick.

In 1882, the town changed
its name to Roanoke (Indian for shell money) and extended its
limits. In 1881, there had been less than 700 inhabitants; in 1883
there were 5,000, and Roanoke received its city charter the next
year. In 1906, the Virginian Railway came, bringing its shops and
its great coal traffic. Mark Twain was a passenger on the first
Virginian coach that entered the city. In succeeding years, many
industries have been attracted to Roanoke.

 


Points of
Interest:

Elmwood Park
(Jefferson Street and Bullitt Avenue)

A large cream-painted brick
house with Dutch-style stepped gable ends, built by Jonathan Tosh
in 1820, stands on the crest of the steep, wooded knoll in the
center.

Lone Oak (Franklin Road and King George Avenue)

The house’s central block,
with walls two feet thick, was built by the Tosh family,
incorporating an earlier log house. It was known originally as Rock
of Ages from the rock ledge on which it stands, and was probably
the first brick house in this part of the valley.

Mill Mountain
(South edge of city limits)

In 1910, an incline trolley
line was built to the summit, which affords a magnificent view of
mountains and valley and of the city itself. The popularity of
precipitous Laurel Road caused the cable car to be abandoned in
1930, and its track was removed in 1934.

Crystal Spring
(S. Jefferson Street and Wellington
Avenue)

From the foot of the Mill
Mountain issues Crystal Spring. It has a flow of 5,000,000 gallons
daily and provides water for the city.

American Viscose Corporation
Plant (South end of E.
9th Street)

This plant was one of the
largest artificial silk factories in the world. It occupies the
site where a Saponi Indian village once stood.

Carr House
(Dale Avenue, between 22nd Street and
23rd Street)

This residence was built
entirely of hand-hewn logs about 1806 by Colonel George W. Carr. It
was first the home of the Akers family and then the plantation home
of Colonel Carr, who served in the Mexican War. Near the house
stand four slave cabins, snug two-story houses also of handhewn
logs with plaster chinking.

Norfolk & Western
Shops (Norfolk Street, east of Randolph
Street)

The shops, acquired by the
railroad in 1883, were started two years earlier as the Roanoke
Machine Works and have been enlarged several times.

Home of Big Lick Garden
Club (Lynchburg Avenue and E.
4th Street)

This frame structure was
built about 1837 and was long thought to be the first Roanoke post
office. During the days of the stagecoach, however, mail was
exchanged and delivered at hostelries. The first authorized post
office was in the little depot of the Virginia & Tennessee
Railroad and was moved about 1868 to the Neal House
nearby.

Raleigh Tavern
(Lynchburg Avenue and E. 2nd Avenue)

Built about the beginning
of the nineteenth century and long known as Pate's Tavern, it was
for several decades a popular stopping place for travelers on the
north-south stages or on the road from Lynchburg west to Seven Mile
Ford. Passengers could alight on the tavern's broad steps, which
still hug the dirt road. During the War Between the States, local
women nursed wounded soldiers here.

Municipal Market
(Bounded by Campbell Avenue, Salem Street, Nelson
Street, and Wall Street)

The market was established
in 1885 in quarters that have been subsequently
enlarged.

Belmont (Tinker Creek at Monterey Golf Course)

Long known as Monterey,
this is a wide one-story log house painted white, with several
rooms and wide stone-flagged porch. The 530-acre tract called Bell
Mount, upon which the house was built, was conveyed by Israel
Christian to William Fleming, who had married Christian's daughter
in 1763. Dr. Fleming, a member of the Continental Congress in 1779
and 1780 and the only man from west of the Blue Ridge ever to sit
in that body, landed at Norfolk in 1755. This Jedburgh-born Scot
and graduate of Edinburgh, having quit His Majesty's Navy in which
he was a surgeon for several years, began almost at once to play a
militant part in his adopted country. He joined Major Andrew Lewis
as a lieutenant and surgeon on the Sandy Creek Voyage, the
unsuccessful expedition sent out by Governor Dinwiddie in 1756 to
join the friendly Cherokee against the Shawnee and the French along
the Ohio; he became an ensign in the First Virginia Regiment,
commanded by Washington, and was made a captain in 1760; later he
practiced medicine at Staunton; and moved to his new home here in
1768. He commanded the Botetourt regiment at Point Pleasant in
1774. Though shot twice in the arm and once through the chest, he
assumed command when all the other leaders had fallen, and his
shouted commands forced part of his lung through the bullet hole in
his chest. In 1781, he was a member of Governor Jefferson's
council. After the expiration of Jefferson's term on June 1st,
Colonel Fleming acted as governor for nearly two weeks before a
successor could be appointed. Fleming fled before Tarleton with the
legislature to Staunton. While he was “holding his court” in
Staunton, the nervous legislature indulged in a second run for its
life on a false rumor that Tarleton had crossed the Blue Ridge, a
flight so precipitate that Patrick Henry is said to have left
Staunton wearing only one boot. Colonel Fleming died at Belmont in
1795 and lies buried somewhere near the house.

Mount Moriah Baptist
Church (Orange Avenue N.E. and Lynn Brae
Drive)

The members of Mount Moriah
Baptist Church belong to one of the region's earliest African
American congregations, originating in a Sunday school for slaves
established in the mid-1800’s by Dr. Charles L. Cocke, founder of
Hollins College. The group gained permission in 1858 to build its
first church. The present church, the congregation's third, was
built about 1908. It was added to the National Register of Historic
Places and the Virginia Landmarks Register in 1994. The nearby
cemetery was expanded from a former slave burial ground.

Hotel Roanoke
(110 Shenandoah Avenue)

The Hotel Roanoke was built
in 1892 by the Norfolk & Western Railroad. Over the next
century, despite fire and depression, it became the city's social
center. The Tudor Revival building became a beloved landmark for
thousands of visitors. Its original 34 rooms had grown to 384 rooms
when, in 1989, the Norfolk & Western donated it to Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University. After a major
renovation and the addition of a conference center, it reopened in
1995. The Hotel Roanoke was listed on the Virginia Landmarks
Register in 1995 and the National Register of Historic Places in
1996.

Buzzard Rock Native American
Settlement (13th Street Southeast at the
Roanoke River)

The archaeological sites on
the extensive floodplain nearby represent at least ten thousand
years of periodic use by Native Americans. The artifacts and
evidence from one site suggests that separate villages were
occupied there some six hundred to one thousand years ago. The site
is believed to have been inhabited by ancestors of a
Siouan-speaking community, such as the Totero Indians, who were
allied with the Monacan Indians and other communities of central
and western Virginia.

Colonial Ford
(Franklin Road at the Roanoke River)

The Great Wagon Road from
Philadelphia to the backcountry of the Carolinas crossed the
Roanoke River here at Tosh's Ford, named for Thomas Tosh, in the
eighteenth century. Nearby stood Daniel Evans's mill, another
landmark on the road. A group of Moravians, among the many
thousands of settlers who passed this way, crossed the ford at dawn
on November 2nd, 1783, en route from
Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, to Bethabara, North Carolina. One wrote in
his diary of the ford's "slippery stones" and reported that "a
quarter of a mile beyond we came to Even's mill." Mill Mountain is
named for Evans's mill.

 


Side Trip to Booker T.
Washington National Monument (Virginia
Highway 116 South, Virginia Highway 122 East)

Birthplace of Confederate
General Jubal Early (11 miles south on VA
116)

Near this place, on land
occupied since the 1780’s by the Early family, Confederate General
Jubal Early was born in 1816. The General practiced law in Franklin
County and served in the Mexican War before the Civil War. Early
fought in more battles than any other Confederate general and came
closest to capturing Washington. Because of his undying devotion to
the southern cause, he became known as "The Unreconstructed
Rebel."

Booker T. Washington
National Monument (15 miles south on VA
116, 5.2 miles east on VA 122)

Booker T. Washington was
born a slave on the nearby Burroughs plantation on April
5th, 1856. He was
graduated from Hampton Institute in 1875 where he became an
instructor. Because of his achievements as an educator, he was
selected to establish a normal school for blacks in Alabama which
later became the Tuskegee Institute. Recognized as an orator and
author of Up From
Slavery, he exerted great influence both
in the Republican party and as a humanitarian for the benefit of
his fellow blacks. He died on November 14th, 1915.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
220 (15.5 miles west of U.S. 221 and U.S.
460 on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

This junction begins
Section 1-N. Section 1-N was begun on July
26th,
1957, and completed on May 2nd, 1960.

 


Side Trip to Rocky
Mount (U.S. Highway 220 South, U.S. 220
Business South)

Murray Gap
(6.1 miles south on U.S. 220)

Here through the Murray Gap
and into the Maggodee Valley, the Great Wagon Road from
Philadelphia to Georgia, known locally as the Carolina Road, passes
through the Blue Ridge. Originating as the Great Warrior Path of
the Iroquois centuries before, the path was frequently used by the
Iroquois before being ceded to the whites in 1744 to become one of
the most heavily traveled roads in all Colonial America.

Boone’s Mill
(8.4 miles south on U.S. 220)

In 1782, Jacob Boone,
cousin of Daniel Boone, arrived here from North Carolina and built
his little mill and cabin on the banks of Maggodee Creek. Because
the Carolina Road was nearby, a community soon grew around the
mill. A house built in 1820 by John Boone, son of Jacob, stands on
the mill site at the northern end of the hamlet.

Fort Blackwater
(14.3 miles south on U.S. 220 at Bonbrook Mill
Road)

Near here stood a stockade
erected by Captain Nathaniel Terry and garrisoned by men under his
command. Washington made "Terry's Fort" a link in his chain of
forts and inspected it in the fall of 1756.

Rocky Mount
(16.5 miles south on U.S. 220, 2.3 miles south on
U.S. 220 Business)

For nearly 100 years, this
community was two rival villages, Rocky Mount and Mount Pleasant.
Though in 1873 Rocky Mount swallowed its smaller rival, the town
buildings of the two villages still glare at each other across a
narrow street.

 


Points of
Interest:

Franklin County
Courthouse

This structure was built in
1909. Franklin County was organized and named in 1785 when Benjamin
Franklin was a popular hero because of the aid he had gained for
the Revolutionists in France.

County records are rich in
human interest stories. Here is the inventory of November
23rd,
1861, of the estate of James Burroughs, a planter, including “One
Negro boy, "Booker," value $400.00.” This little African-American
boy, listed with other slaves among household goods and farm
implements, grew up to be Booker T. Washington, leader and educator
of his race. His birthplace was on the Burroughs plantation in the
Hale's Ford area. When slaves were freed, the boy went with his
mother to Malden, West Virginia, and at night, after having worked
long hours in the salt mines, studied Webster's Blue Back Speller.
As a child in Virginia, he had acquired the name Booker because of
his passion for books. He added the Washington on his first day in
school when roll call caused him to realize that other children had
two names. In 1872, he set out on foot from West Virginia for
Hampton Institute. In Richmond, after spending a night beneath the
planks of a sidewalk, he earned enough for transportation to
Hampton. In his autobiography, Up from
Slavery, Booker T. Washington told the
story of the hard but pleasant work that followed—of his graduation
in 1875; of his return to Malden as teacher in a Negro school; of
his years at Hampton as a member of the faculty; and then of the
big chance that came to develop Tuskegee Institute in
Alabama.

A marriage bond dated
January 7th, 1811, recalls a story still fondly remembered in the
countryside. The bond gave notice that Joseph Hix, a plantation
overseer, intended to marry his employer, Polly Early, a widow.
Mrs. Early's relatives were outraged by her choice of a social
inferior. When the couple entered the bridal chamber on the night
of their marriage, they were confronted by the coffin of the first
husband, dug up and placed there by the bride's brothers. Before
the bridal pair had recovered from their shock the brothers
appeared, carried the bridegroom off to a steep hilltop, thrust him
into a spike-studded hogshead, and rolled him down the hill. The
overseer lived to institute a damage suit against his
assailants.

Another record dated
February 19th, 1830, shows that William B. Williams, the groom of a
May-December romance, applied for divorce on the grounds that on
his wedding night his young bride first drugged his liquor and,
when he fell asleep, tried to murder him by pouring molten lead
into his ear from a fire-shovel.

In 1888, on Snow Creek
nearby, a farmer's plow uncovered an egg-shaped stone weighing
nearly 100 pounds. Cut into the stone was: “Here may be found my
tools and God mine.” Iron pyrites, “fool's gold,” is found in the
vicinity, and the word “God mine” is interpreted as “gold mine.”
The modern phrasing of the message is in marked contrast with the
date, and is generally considered a hoax.

Washington Iron Works
(S. Main Street and Old Furnace Road)

Here stands the furnace and
ironmaster's house of the Washington Iron Works, Franklin County's
first industry. Originally established in 1773 by Colonel John
Donelson, father-in-law of President Andrew Jackson, the iron
plantation was acquired in 1779 by Colonel James Callaway and
Jeremiah Early and expanded to 18,000 acres to become one of the
last great iron plantations in Virginia. The Saunders family
continued the operation until 1850, supplying iron locally and as
far south as Georgia.

 


Junction with County Road
602 (Adney Gap) (14.6 miles west of U.S.
220 on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

Adney Gap is the beginning
of Section 1-P, which began construction on February
28th,
1936, and was completed on December 19th, 1936. Sections 1-P through
1-W were completed prior to the beginning of World War
II.

 


Overlook at Devil’s
Backbone (7.8 miles west of CR 602 on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

This overlook lies just to
the north of Pine Spur Gap, the beginning of Section 1-Q. Section
1-Q was started on March 6th, 1936, and completed on
November 18th, 1938.

 


Cannaday Gap
(CR 793) (11.3 miles west of Devil’s Backbone
Overlook on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

Cannaday Gap is the start
of Section 1-R. Construction began here on March
6th,
1936, and was completed on November 8th, 1938.

 


Patrick County Line
(9.2 miles west of CR 793 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

Patrick County was formed
in 1790 from Henry County, and named for Patrick Henry, who thus
had two counties named for him. General J. E. B. Stuart was born in
this county.

 


Junction with Virginia
Highway 8 (0.8 mile south of the Patrick
County Line on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

This junction is the start
of Section 1-S. Construction began on March 10th, 1936, and was competed on March 22nd, 1939.

 


Side Trip to Buffalo
Ridge (Virginia Highway 8
South)

Buffalo Ridge
(11.2 miles south on VA 8)

The Blue Ridge Mission
School was established by the Virginia Baptist General Convention
in 1916 at a site just to the southeast. It provided general
education and religious training, on both the elementary and
secondary level, to day and boarding students. Its program was
increasingly coordinated with, and in 1941 superseded by, that of
the newly-developed public school system.

 


Side Trip to Floyd
(Virginia Highway 8 North)

Floyd (6 miles north on VA 8)

This town was first called
Jacksonville, and was the birthplace of Robley Dunglison Evans
(1846-1912). Evans was the commander of the U.S.S. Iowa at the Battle of Santiago
Harbor in 1898. After his appointment as rear admiral in 1901, he
commanded both the Asiatic (1902) and Atlantic Fleets
(1905-1908).

 


Points of
Interest:

Floyd County
Courthouse 1845

This structure replaced a
log cabin, which housed the first meeting of the court soon after
the formation of Floyd County from Montgomery County in 1831. The
county was named for John Floyd, governor of Virginia from 1830 to
1834.

Hill Cemetery

The graves of Daniel Henry,
brother of Patrick, and of Annie Maria Smith (1817-1833) are
located here. Smith was a New England school teacher who lived for
a while in Richmond, and then taught in western Virginia. Her
friendship with Edgar Allen Poe found permanent expression in his
poem For Annie.

 


Junction with County Road
799 (8.6 miles south of VA 8 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

This junction is the start
of Section 1-T, began on March 22nd, 1936, and completed on December 22nd, 1939.

 


Meadows of Dan
(U.S. 58) (3.8 miles south of CR 799 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Stuart
(U.S. Highway 58 East)

Stuart (15.7 miles east on U.S. 58)

This place, first known as
Taylorsville for George Taylor, early settler, was established in
1792 after the formation of Patrick County. In 1849, it contained
about fifty dwellings. The name was changed to Stuart for
Confederate General J. E. B. Stuart, who was born in the county.
The courthouse was built in 1852 and remodeled in 1928.

 


Junction with Carousel
Lane (6.2 miles south of U.S. 58 on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

This is the approximate
spot of the beginning of Section 1-U, just to the west of the
Pinnacles of Dan. The Pinnacles are named for the Dan River, which
winds around their base. The description below is borrowed
from Historical Collections of
Virginia (1845):

 


“From the midst of the basin two pinnacles, in the shape of a
sugar loaf, rise to a level with the surrounding mountains, and of
course with the beholder. They appear to be masses of rock rudely
piled on each other, with barely soil enough in the crevices to
nourish a few bushes. There is no visible outlet to the basin, the
narrow chasm through which the river makes its escape being out of
view. If the visitor wishes to ascend the main pinnacle, (one being
much larger than the other,) he descends from his station the face
of the mountain, which is very steep, to a distance which he
imagines sufficient to carry him down the highest mountain,—when he
reaches a narrow ridge or pass-way not more than thirty feet wide,
connecting, at the distance of thirty or forty yards, the pinnacle
to the main mountain,—and to his astonishment the river appears at
an incalculable distance below him. The ascent of the pinnacle then
commences, and an arduous and somewhat perilous one it is. A narrow
pathway winds up among the rocks, and in many places the
adventurous climber has to pull himself up a perpendicular ascent
of five or six feet by the bushes. When he reaches the top,
however, he is amply repaid for his labor in ascending. The
prospect, though necessarily a limited one, is picturesque and
sublime in a high degree. The view of the basin is then complete.
The mountains surrounding it nearly of a uniform height; no outlet
visible, and the beholder perched upon the summit of an immense
natural pyramid in the centre. The river is seen occasionally as it
winds around the base of the pinnacle. It attempts to pass on the
west side, where the narrow ridge by which the visitor approaches
arrests its course; it then winds entirely round the pinnacle close
to its base, until it comes to the opposite or southern side of the
narrow ridge, passing between the two pinnacles: it then passes
round the western and southern side of the smaller pinnacle, and
makes its escape as it best can from its apparently hopeless
imprisonment. The summit of the pinnacle is about twenty or thirty
feet square,—and strange to relate, small bushes of the aspen grow
upon it—which is found nowhere else growing wild in this section of
country. The echo produced is somewhat remarkable. If a gun be
fired off on the top of the pinnacle, you hear nothing for several
seconds, when suddenly, in the direction of the narrow pass through
which the river flows, a rushing sound is heard, which, although
not a correct echo, seems to be the sound of the report escaping
through the pass.”iii

 


Junction with Willis Gap
Road (8.9 miles south of Carousel Lane on
the Blue Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to General J.E.B.
Stuart’s Birthplace (Willis Gap Road South,
The Hollow Road, Virginia Highway 773 South)

General J.E.B. Stuart’s
Birthplace (4.9 miles south on Willis Gap
Road, 3 miles east on The Hollow Road, 2 miles south on VA
773)

To the west stood Laurel
Hill (built about 1830), where Confederate General James Ewell
Brown "Jeb" Stuart was born on February 6th, 1833, to Archibald Stuart, a lawyer and politician, and
Elizabeth Letcher Pannill Stuart. The house burned in the winter of
1847 and 1848. After graduation from the U.S. Military Academy at
West Point in 1854, Stuart served as a U.S. Army officer until May
of 1861 when he joined the Confederate army. In 1862, he became
cavalry commander of the Army of Northern Virginia, and his fame is
a part of the history of that army. Wounded while defending
Richmond on May 11th, 1864, Stuart died
there the next day. He is buried at Hollywood Cemetery in
Richmond.

 


Volunteer Gap
(1 miles east of Willis Gap Road on the Blue Ridge
Parkway at CR 670)

This section of the Blue
Ridge Parkway, Section 1-V, was begun on September
13th,
1938, and completed on December 18th, 1939.

 


Fancy Gap
(6.3 miles west of Volunteer Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

 


Side Trip to
Hillsville (U.S. Highway 52
West)

Hillsville
(8 miles west on U.S. 52)

This place became the
county seat when Carroll County was formed. The first court was
held here in 1842 and A.W.C. Nowlin was the first judge. The
courthouse, built in 1872, was remodeled some years ago. The town
was incorporated in 1900 and rechartered in 1940.

 


Point of
Interest:

Carroll County
Courthouse

During the 1842 session of
the Virginia General Assembly, despite opposition, John Carroll
successfully sponsored a bill partitioning Grayson County and
forming a new county, thus fulfilling his campaign pledge. Local
tradition holds that the controversy over the new county's name was
resolved when there was agreement to honor Charles Carroll of
Carrollton in Maryland, the last surviving signer of the
Declaration of Independence. John Carroll's last residence, located
east of Hillsville, was a plain two-story frame house with a gable
roof. Carroll, born in Ireland in 1801, died in 1860 and is buried
in Wytheville.

Here, on March
12th,
1912, the mountain clan of Allen ran amok during the trial of Floyd
Allen. Floyd Allen was being arraigned for freeing two youthful
members of the clan who had been arrested for disturbing a church
meeting. Trouble was expected when the mountaineers rode into town
and the courtroom was crowded. After the jury’s verdict of guilty
and the refusal of a new trial, Judge Thornton L. Massie imposed a
sentence of a year in jail. As the prisoner stood up and shouted,
“I ain’t a-goin!” a volley blazed “like the crackle of mountain
laurel,” a witness said. The judge, the commonwealth attorney, the
sheriff, the jury foreman, and a witness for the prosecution were
killed, and the clerk of the court was wounded. Then the Allens
rode off into the hills. Subsequently caught, two were sentenced to
death and four to prison. Of these, two were pardoned by Governor
E. Lee Trinkle in 1924 and two by Governor Harry F. Boyd in 1926.
In the mountains, the shooting is remembered in the doleful ballad
Claude Allen.

 


Pipers Gap
(6.7 miles west of Fancy Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This is the start of
Section 1-W. Construction began on January
28th,
1939, and was completed on December 20th, 1939.

 


Junction with Virginia
Highway 89 (9.8 miles west of Pipers Gap on
the Blue Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Galax
(Virginia Highway 89 North)

Galax (7.1 miles north on VA 89)

This town, which sits
astride the Grayson-Carroll County Line, sprang up in 1904. In that
year, a spur of the Norfolk & Western Railway opened up the
timber regions. For a year, the town was called
Bonaparte.

 


Point of
Interest:

Oldtown (1.3 miles west on U.S. 58, 1 mile west on CR 640)

Here at Old Town, in 1794,
was built the first courthouse of Grayson County. The land was
donated by Flower Swift. A second courthouse was built in 1838. The
county seat was removed to Independence about 1850.

 


North Carolina State
Line (1 mile west of VA 89 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

This begins Section 2-A, begun on
September 9th, 1935, and completed on September 21st, 1939.

 



GPS COORDINATES FOR LISTED HISTORIC
SITES:

 


Albemarle County Courthouse
(Jefferson Street and Park Street), 38.03121, -78.4773

American Viscose Corporation Plant
(South end of E. 9th Street), 37.2535, -79.9251

Appalachian Trail (12.3 miles west
of U.S. 501 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.52423,
-79.5052

Balcony Falls Dam (8.2 miles north
on U.S. 501), 37.62118, -79.4412

Belmont (Tinker Creek at Monterey
Golf Course), 37.30309, -79.9204

Birthplace of Confederate General
Jubal Early (11 miles south on VA 116), 37.15819,
-79.8764

Blackhorse Gap (11.6 miles west of
VA 43 South on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.42458,
-79.7572

Booker T. Washington National
Monument (15 miles south on VA 116, 5.2 miles east on VA 122),
37.11982, -79.732

Boone’s Mill (8.4 miles south on
U.S. 220), 37.11525, -79.9546

Buena Vista (4.2 miles west on U.S.
60 at U.S. 501), 37.73441, -79.3544

Buffalo Ridge (11.2 miles south on
VA 8), 36.73721, -80.2488

Buzzard Rock Native American
Settlement (13th Street Southeast at the Roanoke River), 37.26408,
-79.9156

Cannaday Gap (CR 793) (11.3 miles
west of Devil’s Backbone Overlook on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
36.92164, -80.1995

Carroll County Courthouse ,
36.76609, -80.7367

Charlottesville (19.2 miles east on
U.S. 250, 2.7 miles east on U.S. 250 Business), 38.03154,
-78.4812

Colonial Ford (Franklin Road at the
Roanoke River), 37.25535, -79.9495

Crystal Spring Park (S. Jefferson
Street and Yellow Mountain Road), 37.24932, -79.9445

Eagle’s Eyrie (8.6 miles south on
U.S. 501), 37.48166, -79.2777

Elmwood Park (Jefferson Street and
Bullitt Avenue), 37.26839, -79.9407

Fishburne Military School ,
38.06769, -78.8899

Floyd (6 miles north on VA 8),
36.91115, -80.3202

Floyd County Courthouse 1845,
36.91138, -80.3189

Fort Blackwater (14.3 miles south
on U.S. 220 at Bonbrook Mill Road), 37.05714, -79.883

Franklin County Courthouse,
36.99519, -79.8894

Galax (7.1 miles north on VA 89),
36.66282, -80.9252

General J.E.B. Stuart’s Birthplace
(4.9 miles south on Willis Gap Road, 3 miles east on The Hollow
Road, 2 miles south on VA 773), 36.56263, -80.5501

George Rogers Clark Memorial
(Hospital Drive near Jefferson Park Avenue), 38.03292,
-78.5036

Glasgow (9.1 miles north on U.S.
501 at VA 130), 37.63543, -79.4487

Hillsville (8 miles west on U.S.
52), 36.76592, -80.7368

Hotel Roanoke (110 Shenandoah
Avenue), 37.27359, -79.9426

Humpback Gap (6 miles west of U.S.
250 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.96922, -78.8975

Jacksonville Cemetery, 36.9065,
-80.3184

Jarman Gap (13.8 miles south of
Browns Gap Road on Skyline Drive), 38.03124, -78.8582

Junction with County Road 602
(Adney Gap) (14.6 miles west of U.S. 220 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 37.12529, -80.1261

Junction with County Road 605
(Irish Gap) (3 miles west of Yankee Horse Ridge Parking Area on the
Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.79874, -79.218

Junction with County Road 799 (8.6
miles south of VA 8 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.77652,
-80.4042

Junction with County Road 814
(Love) (2.5 miles west of Reeds Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
37.88333, -79.0176

Junction with Elk Mountain Road (2
miles west of U.S. 250 on Blue Ridge Parkway), 38.0139,
-78.8823

Junction with Irish Creek Road (2.2
miles west of VA 56 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.86348,
-79.1489

Junction with Robinson Gap Road
(4.3 miles west of U.S. 60 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.69255,
-79.3231

Junction with Terrys Mill Road (6.2
miles south of U.S. 58 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.67327,
-80.4674

Junction with U.S. Highway 220
(15.5 miles west of U.S. 221 and U.S. 460 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 37.21082, -79.9543

Junction with U.S. Highway 460 and
U.S. Highway 221 (8.2 miles west of Blackhorse Gap on the Blue
Ridge Parkway), 37.35708, -79.8358

Junction with U.S. Highway 501
(13.5 miles west of Robinson Gap Road on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
37.55492, -79.3697

Junction with U.S. Highway 60 (8
miles west of CR 605 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.74274,
-79.302

Junction with Virginia Highway 43
South (Peaks Road) (9.5 miles west of the Appalachian Trail on the
Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.44493, -79.6098

Junction with Virginia Highway 56
(11 miles west of CR 814 (Love) on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
37.88665, -79.1511

Junction with Virginia Highway 8
(0.8 mile south of the Patrick County Line on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 36.84312, -80.3199

Level Green (One mile west on Level
Green Road), 37.78366, -79.0279

Lewis and Clark Memorial (Ridge
Street and Main Street), 38.03069, -78.485

Lone Oak (Franklin Road and King
George Avenue), 37.25983, -79.9471

Mill Mountain (South edge of city
limits), 37.24895, -79.9362

Mount Moriah Baptist Church (Orange
Avenue N.E. and Lynn Brae Drive), 37.30234, -79.893

Municipal Market (Bounded by
Campbell Avenue, Salem Street, Nelson Street, and Wall Street),
37.27185, -79.9388

Murray Gap (6.1 miles south on U.S.
220), 37.13941, -79.9726

Nellysford (5.7 miles east on CR
664, 2.9 miles north on VA 151), 37.89004, -78.8732

Norfolk & Western Shops (303
Norfolk Avenue SW), 37.27275, -79.1127

North Carolina State Line (1 mile
west of VA 89 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.56203,
-80.9127

Old Armory of the Monticello Guards
(Market Street and E. 5th Street), 38.03057, -78.4781

Oldtown (1.3 miles west on U.S. 58,
1 mile west on CR 640), 36.65533, -80.958

Overlook at Devil’s Backbone (7.8
miles west of CR 602 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 37.03577,
-80.1106

Patrick County Line (9.2 miles west
of CR 793 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.84364, -80.3072

Pharsalia, 37.8016,
-79.0244

Pipers Gap (6.7 miles west of Fancy
Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.61765, -80.7768

Roanoke (8.4 miles south on U.S.
221), 37.27181, -79.9405

Rockfish Church (5.7 miles east on
CR 664, 5.3 miles north on VA 151), 37.9224, -78.8388

Rocky Mount (16.5 miles south on
U.S. 220, 2.3 miles south on U.S. 220 Business), 36.99655,
-79.8918

Site of Raleigh Tavern (Orange
Avenue and E. 2nd Avenue), 37.28241, -79.9402

Site of the Carr House (Dale
Avenue, between 22nd Street and 23rd Street), 37.27462,
-79.9089

Site of the Old Swan Tavern
(Jefferson Street and Park Street), 38.03121, -78.4773

Steele’s Tavern (5.1 miles west on
VA 56), 37.92545, -79.2025

Stuart (15.7 miles east on U.S.
58), 36.64224, -80.2693

The Farm (East end of Jefferson
Street), 38.03104, -78.4742

The Site of the Home of Big Lick
Garden Club (Williamson Road and Orange Avenue), 37.28234,
-79.9334

Three Chimneys, 37.89296,
-78.8681

University of Virginia (West end of
Main Street), 38.03183, -78.4987

Volunteer Gap (1 miles east of
Willis Gap Road on the Blue Ridge Parkway at CR 670), 36.66065,
-80.5946

Walnut Grove (County Road 606),
37.92905, -79.2099

Washington Iron Works (S. Main
Street and Old Furnace Road), 36.98838, -79.8904

Waynesboro (3.4 miles west on U.S.
250), 38.0687, -78.8895

Yankee Horse Ridge Parking Area (7
miles west of Irish Creek Road on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
37.80984, -79.1794
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Blue Ridge
Parkway-North Carolina

 


 Virginia State Line

North Carolina’s stretch of the
Blue Ridge Parkway is broken into sections, starting with 2-A,
traveling from the Virginia State Line to U.S. Highway 21. This
section was begun on September 11th, 1935, and was completed on
September 29th, 1939.

 


Junction with North Carolina Highway
18 (0.5 mile south of the Virginia Line on
the Blue Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Lowgap
(North Carolina Highway 18 East, North Carolina
Highway 89 South)

Lowgap (0.6
mile east on N.C. 18, 4 miles south on N.C. 89)

Jesse Franklin, governor of North
Carolina from 1820 to 1821 and a State and U.S. Senator and
Representative, owned a home here. Franklin also served as an
officer during the American Revolution.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway 21
(12.2 miles west of N.C. 18 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This is the start of Section 2-B.
Construction began on December 6th, 1935, and was completed
December 30th, 1937.

 


Air Bellows Gap (7.6 miles west of U.S. 21 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)


Section 2-C begins here,
constructed between December 7th, 1935, and November
17th,
1937.

 


Junction with North Carolina Highway
18 (18.5 miles west of U.S. 21 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

Construction began on this section,
2-D, on March 5th, 1936, and was completed on
May 14th, 1938.

 


Side Trip to Laurel Springs
(North Carolina Highway 18 East)

Junction with Primrose Lane
(0.9 mile east on N.C. 18)

Nearby is the Doughton Home. This
was the birthplace of Robert L. (Farmer Bob) Doughton, a U.S.
Congressman. On this farm is the house in which the Siamese twins,
Eng and Chang Bunker. Born at Bangesau, Siam, on April 15th, 1811,
of a Chinese father and a Siamese mother, the twins were connected
by a thick fleshy ligament joining the lower ends of the
breastbones. They were brought to this country in 1829 by an
American ship captain. The surname Bunker was adopted from a
bystander at the immigration office when the twins were told they
must have a family name. P.T. Barnum exhibited them and gave them
wide publicity.

In 1842, they married twin sisters,
Sallie and Adelaide Yates. They later moved to White Plains, where
they divided their time in three-day periods between the two homes
and reared large families. Many of their descendants remained in
White Plains. The twins died within an hour of each other in 1874
and were first buried in the garden of one of their homes. Their
remains were later moved to the cemetery of the Baptist Church,
where a double monument marks the grave.
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Laurel Springs (1.9 miles east on N.C. 18)

This was the scene of frequent
robberies and murders by bushwhackers and deserters during the
American Civil War.

 


Side Trip to
Wilkesboro (North Carolina Highway 18
South)

North Wilkesboro
(21.3 miles south on N.C. 18)

This community was chartered in
1891 when citizens voted to separate from Wilkesboro.

Wilkesboro (22.9 miles south on N.C. 18)

Wilkesboro was settled before the
American Revolution and called Mulberry Fields. The county and town
were named for John Wilkes (1727-1797), an English statesman and
defender of popular rights. John Wilkes Booth, Abraham Lincoln’s
assassin, was related to John Wilkes through his paternal
grandmother.

After the American Civil War, a
band of army deserters and outlaws, who had been plundering Wilkes
County for several months, were trapped in a house which was set
afire. All of the bandits except Colonel Wade, their leader,
surrendered, were tried, sentenced, and shot. Tradition relates
that while Wade was being sought he escaped by hiding under the
water of the Yadkin River near the bank, breathing through a
reed.

 


Points of
Interest:

Courthouse (N. Bridge Street and E. Main Street)

The first log courthouse was used
until 1830. The first deed recorded was a grant in 1779 of 3,400
acres to Colonel Benjamin Cleveland, whose tract, Roundabout, was
in a horseshoe bend of the river. “Old Roundabout” was a popular
nickname for Cleveland who was widely known for his vigorous
activity in the Whig cause. He led men from this region to the
Battle of Kings Mountain, where he commanded the left flank of the
American forces. He was a scourge to the Tories around Ramsours
Mill, as well as in the New and upper Yadkin River sections. After
the war, he lost Roundabout to a “better title,” whereupon he
removed in 1785 to the Tugalo country in South Carolina. Here, he
became a county court judge. Possessed of little formal education,
Cleveland held legal technicalities and lengthy perorations in
contempt. He had attained a weight of 450 pounds and often slept
serenely on the bench, content to be prodded if his snoring
interrupted the business of the court. Cleveland County was named
for him.

Tory Oak (Courthouse Lawn)

This oak served as the gibbet for
five Tories hanged by Colonel Cleveland. One of the victims was the
Tory leader, William Riddle, who had spared Cleveland’s life under
similar circumstances.

Cowles House (200 E. Main Street)

This residence was built in 1803 by
Johnny Waugh. It was the home of Calvin J. Cowles, president of the
convention that adopted the State constitution in 1868.

St. Paul’s Episcopal Church
(North Street and N. West Street)

St. Paul’s was erected between 1846
and 1849.

Stokes Mansion (3.5 miles west on N.C. 267)

The slave cabins here are of hewn
logs. This was the home of Montfort Stokes, a U.S. Senator from
1816 until 1823. Stokes was elected Governor in 1830. He resigned
on November 19th, 1832, to accept an
appointment from President Andrew Jackson as commissioner to report
on conditions in the Indian Territory.

 


Junction with Peak Creek Church
Road (2.7 miles west of N.C. 18 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Ore Knob
(Peak Creek Church Road North, North Carolina
Highway 88 West, Little Peak Road North, Ore Knob Road
East)

Ore Knob (2.5 miles north on Peak Creek Church Road, 1.1 miles west on
N.C. 88, 0.5 mile north on Little Peak Road, 0.2 mile east on Ore
Knob Road)

During the 1850’s, a vein of copper
ore was discovered two miles from the New River in southeastern
Ashe County. A group of investors from Meigs County, Tennessee,
developed the Ore Knob Mine, which commenced production in February
of 1855. Due to the high costs of transporting the copper over
sixty-three miles of mountainous terrain to the nearest railroad,
the mine closed during the summer of 1856 and remained closed until
after the Civil War. The Ore Knob Mine resumed production in July
of 1873 under the control of Clayton & Company of Baltimore. At
that time, it employed 150 workers. By 1875, Ore Knob, located
halfway between present day Laurel Springs and West Jefferson, was
the largest settlement in Ashe County and it was incorporated by
the state legislature. By 1878, the mine employed over 700 men.
Because of the drop of copper prices, the mine ceased production
in1883. From that point on occasion mining took place at the site.
The mine closed permanently in 1962.

 


Junction with North Carolina Highway
16 (10.4 miles west of Peak Creek Church
Road on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

North Carolina Highway 16 starts
Section 2-E. Construction began on March 6th, 1936, and was finished on
December 16th, 1937.

 


Side Trip to Rendezvous
Mountain (North Carolina Highway 16 South,
Shingle Gap Road West, Rendezvous Mountain Road North)

Rendezvous Mountain
(10 miles south on N.C. 16, 2.5 miles west on
Shingle Gap Road, 1.8 miles north on Rendezvous Mountain
Road)

Wilkes County patriots were drilled
here by Colonel Benjamin Cleveland to suppress the Indians and
fight the British at Kings Mountain.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
421 (15.1 miles west of N.C. 16 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

As noted the name of this roadway,
the Boone Trail, U.S. Highway 421 follows the path of Daniel Boone
through Deep Gap. Section 2-F of the Blue Ridge Parkway was started
on February 27th, 1940, and was completed in
November 14th, 1958. Construction on this section was interrupted by World
War II, and the subsequent two sections beyond this one were not
started until after the war.

 


Side Trip to Cleveland Cabin
(U.S. Highway 421 South, Boone Trail East,
Parsonville Road North)

This portion of Boone Trail follows
the older route of U.S. Highway 421 toward North
Wilkesboro.

Cleveland Cabin (9.5 miles south on U.S. 421, 5.3 miles east on Boone Trail,
1.5 miles north on Parsonville Road)

This was the home of Captain Robert
Cleveland, who was wounded in the Battle of Kings Mountain, to
which he had marched with his brother Benjamin. The house, in an
old apple orchard, had fallen into disrepair by the 1930’s, but
plans were made to restore it. Captain Cleveland is buried with
other members of his family in a fenced enclosure in an open field
nearby.

 


Elk Creek Road (5.4 miles west of U.S. 421 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Boone
(Old U.S. Highway 421 North, U.S. Highway 421
North)

Elk Creek Road connects the Blue
Ridge Parkway with Old U.S. Highway 421 at this junction. The side
trip crosses new U.S. Highway 421, connecting with it again after
an additional two miles.

Three Forks Baptist Church
(1.7 miles north on Old U.S. 421, 2.2 miles north
on U.S. 421)

Daniel Boone’s name is on the
church’s rolls, though some historians assert Boone was not a
church member.

Boone (1.7
miles north on Old U.S. 421, 4 miles north on U.S. 421)

This town was named for Daniel
Boone, whose home was in this section from 1760 until 1769. About
1760, the great hunter crossed the mountains through Deep Gap into
the unexplored forests around the Watauga River.

Bishop August Gottlieb Spangenberg
and Henry Anties, while seeking a site for a Moravian settlement in
1752, rode through what is now Boone and the adjacent valley of the
New River. Sections of Watauga and Ashe Counties, together with
adjacent areas now in the State of Tennessee, were once included in
the Watauga Settlements. The region belonged to North Carolina, but
being so far from the jurisdiction of any government, the settlers
in 1772, led by John Sevier and James Robertson, organized as the
Watauga Association, a little republic with a written constitution.
A peace commission was formed and courts were organized with stated
sittings. Swift justice was administered, as in the case of a horse
thief arrested on Monday, tried on Wednesday, and hanged on Friday
of the same week.

On one occasion in 1776,
hostilities between the Indians and Wataugans broke out with such
suddenness that the settlers had to run for a blockhouse, leaving
behind Bibles in the church. A sally party was met with jubilation
when it returned with the Bibles and the scalps of 11 Indians. In
1778, North Carolina asserted itself, and the sovereignty of the
little backwoods republic disappeared for all time.

Boone became the terminus of the
narrow-gauge East Tennessee & Western North Carolina Railroad,
built in 1886 as a logging railroad. Its eastern section was
formerly known as the Linville River Railroad. The East Tennessee
& Western North Carolina became known as the “Tweetsie” by the
people it served in the mountain region. “Tweetsie” took four house
to make her tortuous 66-mile run, barring stops for “critters” to
get off the tracks or for delivery of a spool of thread or bottle
of medicine to a waiting housewife.

 


Point of Interest:

Appalachian State
University

This institution was founded in
1899 by B.B. and D.D. Dougherty as the Watauga Academy.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
321 (9.9 miles west of Elk Creek Road on
the Blue Ridge Parkway at Flat Top Road)


Section 2-G, which begins
here, was started on August 4th, 1954, and was completed on
November 9th, 1960.

 


Side Trip to Blowing Rock
and Fort Defiance (U.S. Highway 321 South, North
Carolina Highway 268 East)

Blowing Rock (1.3 miles south on U.S. 321)

Blowing Rock, one of the oldest
resorts in the southern Appalachians, is the only incorporated town
on the Blue Ridge Parkway. The village was developed in the late
1880’s when stages over rough mountain roads were the only means of
access, since the altitude made a railway impracticable.

In the early 1900’s, the Santa Fe
Railway, in an attempt to boost tourism to the southwestern United
States, commissioned a number of paintings by renowned artists of
the natural wonders and tourist destinations of the region. Perhaps
the most famous painting from this exhibition, The Grand
Canyon, was completed by artist Elliott Daingerfield
(1859-1932). Daingerfield’s paintings hang in the National Gallery
and the Metropolitan Museum. He had a home near Blowing
Rock.iv

 


Point of
Interest:

Site of Skyland Institute
(U.S. 321 Bypass at Main Street)

Emily Prudden (1832-1917), a
missionary, founded 15 western North Carolina schools, including
the forerunner to Pfeiffer College. Her Skyland Institute stood
here.

 


Fort Defiance (15.7 miles
south on U.S. 321, 1 mile east on N.C. 268)

This was the home of William
Lenoir, a leader in the American Revolution and North Carolina
public affairs. The residence was built between 1788 and 1792 and
was named for the colonial fort located 4.5 miles east.

 


Junction with County Road
1552 (2.6 miles west of U.S. 321 on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

Moses H. Cone Memorial Park, a
3,750-acre estate was given to the State by the heirs of Moses H.
Cone (1857-1908), a Greensboro industrialist. Cone is buried on the
slope of Flat Top.

 


Junction with Holloway Mountain
Road (4.1 miles west of CR 1552 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

This intersection is the beginning
of Section 2-H, started on December 3rd, 1968, and completed on
September 11th, 1987. This was the last
section of the Blue Ridge Parkway to be completed.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
221 (6.8 miles west of CR 1552 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway at Grandfather Mountain)

 


Side Trip to Newland
(U.S. Highway 221 South, North Carolina Highway
181 West)

Grandfather Mountain
(1 mile south on U.S. 221, 2.3 miles north on
Grandfather Mountain Road)

The profile of an old man, lying in
repost, is clearly discernible. Andre Michaux, the French botanist
and pioneer in studying the flora of western North Carolina,
visited Grandfather Mountain in August of 1794. In July of 1841,
Asa Gray, an American botanist and a Harvard Professor, also
visited the mountain.

Montezuma (3
miles south on U.S. 221. 1.5 miles west on N.C. 181, 0.4 mile west
on Old N.C. 181)

Montezuma was a station on the East
Tennessee & Western North Carolina Railroad, which attained an
elevation of 4,045 feet at Linville Gap.

Newland (3
miles south on U.S. 221, 4 miles west on N.C. 181)

At the headwaters of the North Toe
River, this community was first called Old Fields of Toe, when it
was a muster ground for forces to fight the Indians. Some of the
Kings Mountain Boys assembled here to start their march.

 


Beacon Heights (0.2 mile west of U.S. 221 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This marks the beginning of Section
2-J, which was begun on March 23rd, 1938, and completed on June
7th,
1940.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
221 (12 miles west of Beacon Heights on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

This begins Section 2-K.
Construction began on March 3rd, 1938, and was completed on
October 15th, 1941.

 


McKinney Gap (County Road 1121) (10 miles west of U.S. 221 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

McKinney Gap is the start of
Section 2-L. Construction began on July 18th, 1937, and October
30th,
1939.

 


Gillespie Gap (3.4 miles west of CR 1121 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

A rock pyramid located here honors
the patriots who passed through the gap on September
29th,
1780, on their way to Kings Mountain. It also commemorates General
Francis Marion who, with 30 picked men, was sent to dislodge the
Cherokee at Etchoe Pass. As Marion and his men entered the pass,
they were ambushed and 21 of the soldiers were killed. North
Carolina Highway 226 is also referred to as the Etchoe Pass
Road.

 


Side Trip to Cathey’s Fort
(North Carolina Highway 226 South)

Cathey’s Fort (5.3 miles south on N.C. 226 at U.S. 221)

Cathey’s Fort was a rendezvous for
the North Carolina militia led by General Griffith Rutherford
against the Cherokee in 1776. It was located one mile east of this
junction.

 


Junction with County Road
1100 (3 miles west of N.C. 226 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Little
Switzerland (County Road 1100 South, North
Carolina Highway 226 Alternate South)

North Carolina Highway 226
Alternate is the earlier route of North Carolina Highway 26 to
Woodlawn.

Little Switzerland
(0.1 mile south on CR 1100, 0.1 mile north on N.C.
226 Alternate)

Little Switzerland was founded in
1910 as a summer colony. At the northern end of town is Big Linn,
an old tree under which the frontiersmen on the way to Kings
Mountain are said to have held council.

 


Gooch Gap (CR 1421) (2.4 miles west of CR 1100 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This intersection begins Section
2-M. Construction began on July 4th, 1936, and was completed on
July 5th, 1940.

 


Side Trip to Wild Acres
(Wild Acres Road South)

Wild Acres (0.7 mile south on Wild Acres Road)

This hotel and a few cottages are
all that were completed of a 1926 real estate
development.

 


Big Laurel Gap (11.1 miles west of Gooch Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This junction, at Curtis Creek
Road, is located just past Big Laurel Mountain. Section 2-N
construction began September 24th, 1936, and was completed on
October 17th, 1941.

 


Black Mountain Gap
(11.1 miles west of CR 1100 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)
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Side Trip to Mount Mitchell
State Park (North Carolina Highway 128
North)

Mount Mitchell State Park
(4.3 miles north on N.C. 128)

This mountain was named for Dr.
Elisha Mitchell, professor at the University of North Carolina, who
in 1835 measured its altitude and found it to be higher than Mount
Washington, New Hampshire, then considered the highest peak in the
Eastern United States. In 1844, Dr. Mitchell and General Clingman
made measurements in the Black, the Balsam, and the Great Smoky
Mountains. When General Clingman published a statement that he had
discovered a higher peak than Mount Mitchell, Dr. Mitchell
attempted to verify his own measurements by running a series of
levels from the terminus of the railroad near Morganton to the
Half-Way House. From this point, on June 27th, 1857, he
started to Big Tom Wilson’s in Yancey County by the route he had
followed in 1844, intending to meet his son Charles. After three
days had elapsed and he failed to return, his son reported the
professor’s disappearance and men set out to search for him. Big
Tom Wilson, who had been Dr. Mitchell’s guide in 1844, discovered
his trail and found the body in a pool at the foot of a waterfall,
since called Mitchells Falls. The body was taken to Asheville and
there interred in the Presbyterian Churchyard, but a year later it
was removed and buried at the peak of Mount Mitchell.

 


Balsam Gap (4.4 miles west
of Black Mountain Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

Located just before Walker Knob,
Balsam Gap marks the start of Section 2-P. Construction began on
the section on December 4th, 1936, and was completed on
July 6th, 1950. This was another section where the
construction was interrupted by World War II.

 


Junction with Elk Mountain
Scenic Highway (15.9 miles west of Balsam Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)


Section 2-Q begins here,
at what is referred to as Bull Gap. Construction began on April
12th, 1949. Completion occurred on July 5th,
1952.

 


Junction with County Road
2053 (1.9 miles west of Elk Mountain Scenic Highway on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Swain House
(County Road 2053 East)

Site of the Swain House (3
miles west on County Road 2053 at Governors Circle)

On this site was a log dwelling
built in 1795 by George Swain, which was the birthplace of David
Swain and Joseph Lane, cousins who became Governors of different
states. The present structure was built from the logs of the
original. David Lowry Swain, son of George and Caroline Lane Lowry
Swain, who was born here on January 4th, 1801, served as
Governor of North Carolina (1832-1835), the youngest man who ever
occupied that position, and was president of the University of
North Carolina from 1835 until his death in 1868.

Joseph Lane was born in the Swain
house on December 4th, 1801, the son of John and
Elizabeth Street Lane. He moved to Kentucky, later to Indiana, and
was brevetted major-general for service in the Mexican War. In
1848, he was commissioned by President James K. Polk as Governor of
the Territory of Oregon, was elected United States Senator in 1859,
and Governor of the new State in 1861. In 1860, he was candidate
for Vice President of the United States under
Breckinridge.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway 70
(5.3 miles west of County Road 2053 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Asheville
(U.S. Highway 70 West)

Asheville (4.8 miles west on
U.S. 70 at U.S. 25)

The site of Asheville was a part of
the Cherokee Indian hunting ground. In 1673, James Needham and
Gabriel Arthur came into Cherokee territory to establish trade with
the Indians, who, by 1700, were bartering skins for guns. Long
before the American Revolution, white hunters explored what is now
Buncombe County. There were no settlements before the Revolution
because the English had fixed the boundary of white domain at the
foot of the Blue Ridge and guaranteed the territorial integrity of
the Indians. This assurance made the Cherokee allies of the British
during the Revolution, and inspired their raids upon Colonial
settlements. To end Indian aggression, General Griffith Rutherford
led his Colonial force through the region in 1776, marching down
the Swannanoa River as far as present Asheville, and then
proceeding westward to crush the Cherokee and destroy their
villages.

In 1792, Buncombe County was formed
from Rutherford and Burke Counties, its territory extending to the
western boundary of the State. It was named for Colonel Edward
Buncombe, a Revolutionary War figure. The definition of "buncombe"
(spelled also bunkum and contracted to bunk), as meaning anything
said, written, or done for mere show, had its origin in a speech
made in the Sixteenth Congress by Felix Walker, Representative from
the district of which Buncombe County was a part. The address was a
masterpiece of fence-sitting, and when a colleague asked the
purpose of it, Walker replied: "I was just talking for
Buncombe."

In 1794, John Burton laid out a
town tract of 21 acres for the county seat near the heart of the
present business district and named it Morristown in honor of
Robert Morris who helped finance the American Revolution and who
once had large land holdings in this section. Three years later
when the settlement was incorporated it was renamed in honor of
Samuel Ashe, Governor of North Carolina (1795-1798).

With the construction of the
Buncombe Turnpike in 1824, the region became more accessible from
South Carolina, Georgia, and other Southern States. Visitors and
health seekers came in increasing numbers to escape the summer heat
of the southern coastal plains and many remained to build homes. A
fashionable resort grew up at Sulphur Springs, west of the town,
when Asheville was little more than a stage stop "between the two
Greenvilles" (South Carolina and Tennessee).

To the Confederate Army, the county
contributed seven of the ten companies composing the
60th North Carolina Regiment, including the Buncombe
Riflemen. Battery Park Hill took its name from an artillery unit
stationed on that eminence. Union troops occupied the city during
the final months of the conflict after a minor skirmish a few miles
north of town, and burned an armory on Valley Street.

Tobacco became a profitable crop
during the Reconstruction period and several warehouses were built.
Falling prices led to abandonment of the industry until 1931, when,
because of the successful cultivation of burley tobacco in the
region, the city again became a tobacco market center.

From 1880, with completion of the
first railroad, Asheville experienced a slow but steady growth as
industrial plants increased in number and size and new residents
built homes. Textile mills were established and plants were set up
for the manufacture of wood and mica products, foodstuffs, and
other commodities. The coming of George Vanderbilt, the New York
capitalist, in 1889, and of E. W. Grove, the St. Louis
manufacturer, in 1900, and the improvement projects they conducted,
served to attract wider attention to the city and to accelerate its
growth. Vanderbilt founded Biltmore Village, south of the city,
purchased 130,000 acres of mountain lands, and developed Biltmore
Estate with its great chateau. Grove established the residential
section bearing his name, built Grove Park Inn, and cut the top off
Battery Park Hill, using the mass of earth and stone to fill a
ravine south of Patton Avenue, now the Coxe Street section. The
first streetcar was operated in 1889; the last was replaced by
buses in 1934.

In the middle 1920’s, the Florida
real estate boom spread to Asheville. Wild speculation and
unwholesome overexpansion, both public and private, caused several
bank failures and a distressing public debt. In 1936, a debt
settlement, based on a long-time amortization plan, was effected
with the creditors of the city and county.

 


Points of
Interest:

Biltmore Village (South of
the Swannanoa River at end of Biltmore Avenue)

This development was designed and
built by George Vanderbilt as a model English-type community of
which Biltmore House was the manor. A native of Staten Island, New
York, Vanderbilt began buying land southeast of Asheville in 1889,
including Mount Pisgah and several other forested mountains and
valleys. A village plaza and a score or more of houses were
erected, in the medieval half-timber type of construction. The
village proper was sold to an investment company after Mr.
Vanderbilt's death.

Biltmore Estate (Vanderbilt
Road, west of Biltmore Village)

This estate comprises 12,000 acres
of farm and forest lands including landscaped grounds surrounding
Biltmore House, the Biltmore Dairies, a reservation for wildlife
preservation, and 15 highly developed farms operated by tenants. In
1892 Mr. Vanderbilt appointed young Gifford Pinchot superintendent
of the Biltmore forests, enabling him to institute the first
large-scale reforestation project in the United States. On the
appointment of Pinchot as chief of the United States Division of
Forestry he was succeeded in 1895 by Dr. Carl Alvin Schenck, forest
assessor of the Grand Duchy of Hesse, whose work as a practical
forester and a founder of the Biltmore School of Forestry
contributed to the development of scientific forestry in the
U.S.

In 1916, Mrs. Vanderbilt sold
80,600 acres to the United States Government to form the nucleus of
the Pisgah National Forest. Later she sold a tract from the estate
for development into the Biltmore Forest residential village. The
50 acres immediately surrounding the Biltmore House are laid out in
terraces and gardens. The Biltmore House was completed in 1895
after five years of construction.

Riverside Cemetery (Birch
Street, west of Pearson Drive)

William Sydney Porter (O.Henry)
(1862-1910) is interned here, as is Thomas Wolfe. A monument marks
the grave of 18 interned German sailors who died of typhoid fever
during the World War I in the United States hospital, Kenilworth.
With several hundred others, they were held in an internment camp
at Hot Springs after being taken from German merchant ships in
United States harbors. The monument was erected in 1932.

Here also is the Grave of Thomas L.
Clingman (1812-1897), Representative in Congress and later United
States Senator, who served as brigadier general in the Confederate
Army. After the war he measured several mountain peaks in western
North Carolina and assisted in developing the mineral resources of
the section. The Grave of Zebulon Baird Vance is marked by a rough
block of granite, and nearby is the Grave of General Robert B.
Vance (1828-1899), his brother. General Vance served in the
Confederate Army as commander of the military district of western
North Carolina.

Pack Square (College Street
at Broadway)

This public square was named for
George Willis Pack, a philanthropist and a native of New York
State. This was formerly the courthouse square. The first
courthouse, built of logs, was erected in 1793 and was succeeded in
turn by four other buildings. The fifth was torn down in 1903 after
Mr. Pack had given land on East College Street for a new
building.

Zebulon Vance Monument (Pack
Square)

This obelisk was erected in 1897 to
honor Zebulon Baird Vance (1830-1894). A native of Buncombe County,
Zebulon Vance was in succession a member of Congress, Colonel of
Confederate troops, twice Governor of the State, and at the time of
his death United States Senator. It is said that he loved every
foot of North Carolina soil from the Dismal Swamp to Cherokee, and
that he gave $5 to every baby named for him until they became too
numerous. The monument was financed through popular subscription
aided by a gift from Mr. Pack.

Pack Memorial Library
(Haywood Street and Vanderbilt Place)

This library was the outgrowth of a
private library organization started in 1879; a building was
donated to the group by Mr. Pack in 1899. The association in 1919
conveyed its property to the city. The three-story limestone
structure was erected in 1925.

City Hall (70 Court
Plaza)

Designed by Douglas Ellington and
built in 1927, the nine-story building is surmounted by a tower
covered with varicolored tiling.

First Baptist Church (Oak
Street and Woodfin Street)

This structure was designed by
Douglas Ellington and completed in 1927.

St. Lawrence Church (Haywood
Street and Flint Street)

St. Lawrence Church was completed
in 1909. The building was designed by Rafael Guastavino, whose body
rests in a crypt near the entrance of the Chapel of Our Lady.
Guastavino, a native of Spain, won a wide reputation for
originating a cohesive type of self-supporting arch. He came to the
United States in 1881, and to Asheville as a consulting architect
on the Biltmore House. Finding the facilities of the Catholic
church inadequate, he proposed construction of a new building to
which he contributed his services and part of the funds.

McDowell House (283 Victoria
Road)

The oldest house in Asheville was
built in 1840 by James M. Smith, the first white child born (1787)
west of the Blue Ridge. The brick structure of post-Colonial
architecture has 18-inch brick walls, massive end chimneys, and a
two-story gallery porch on the front.

Grove Park Inn (Macon Avenue
on the west slope of Sunset Mountain)

This resort hotel was built in 1912
and 1913 for E.W. Grove.

Newton Academy (Biltmore
Avenue at Unadilla Avenue)

Established before 1793 as Union
Hill Academy, this institution was named for Reverend George
Newton. The present Newton Academy School is the fourth building on
this site.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway 74
Alternate (2.2 miles west of U.S. 70 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This junction is the beginning of
Section 2-R. This section was begun on July 22nd, 1965,
and completed on August 18th, 1967.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway 25
(4 miles west of U.S. 74 Alternate on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Fletcher
(U.S. Highway 25 South)

Fletcher (6.5 miles south on U.S. 25)

Edgar W. (Bill) Nye (1850-1896), a
journalist and humorist, lived in Buck Shoals, his home, which
stands 3.5 miles west. His grave is one mile north.

 


Junction with North Carolina Highway
191 (4.8 miles west of U.S. 25 on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

Located at the French Broad River,
this junction begins Section 2-S, which was begun on November
23rd,
1959, and completed on October 9th, 1963.

 


Side Trip to Mills River
(North Carolina Highway 191 South, S. Mills River
Road West)

Mills River (8 miles south on N.C. 191, 4 miles west on Mills River Road
at Silas Sitton Road)

A forge was set up here by Philip
Sitton after 1804. A gun shop was the source for the manufacture of
rifles by Philip Gillespie. Both operated until the
1860’s.

 


Ferrin Knob Tunnel No. 3
(7.9 miles west of N.C. 191 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)


Section 2-T begins at
this point on the southern slope of Ferrin Knob. Construction began
on July 10th, 1961, and ended on September 8th, 1965.

 


Buck Spring Tunnel
(5.8 miles west of Ferrin Knob Tunnel No. 3 on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

This tunnel is the beginning of
Section 2-U, which began construction on March
1st,
1939, and was completed on September 2nd, 1955.

 


Yellowstone Falls
(11.7 miles west of Buck Spring Tunnel on the Blue
Ridge Parkway)

With the falls to the north of the
parkway, construction began on Section 2-V on October
11th,
1939, and was completed on September 2nd, 1955.

 


Reinhart Gap (10.5 miles west of Yellowstone Falls on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)


Section 2-W begins at the
foot of Reinhart Knob. Construction began on July
7th,
1958, and was completed October 18th, 1962.

 


Balsam Gap (13.7 miles west of Reinhart Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

This begins Section 2-X, which was
built between July 18th, 1957, and October
13th,
1960.

 


Side Trip to Waynesville
(U.S. Highway 23 North, U.S. Highway 23 Business
North)

Waynesville (4.3 miles north on U.S. 23, 2.3 miles north on U.S. 23
Business)

Confederate General James G. Martin
surrendered the army of western North Carolina, the last
Confederate force in the state, in Waynesville on May
6th,
1865.

 


Soco Gap (14.4 miles west of Balsam Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

The Cherokee refer to this gap as
Ahalu'na (Indian for “place where they ambushed”). Before the
coming of the white man, the Cherokee, who used this place for a
lookout, once ambushed a large party of invading Iroquois, slaying
all but one. Following custom, they cut off the ears of this victim
and released him to carry the news back to his people. Another
story concerns the great Chief Tecumseh. At the time of the War of
1812, he and certain of the tribes north of the Ohio had allied
themselves with the British. Tecumseh came to enlist the aid of the
Cherokee. A council was called to hear him and Tecumseh made an
impassioned plea to the assembled warriors. However, their own
chief, Yonaguska, advised continued peace. When he realized what
the outcome would be, Tecumseh is said to have made his departure
by leaping over the heads of the warriors seated in a ring around
the chiefs.

In March of 1865, Colonel George W.
Kirk with a regiment of Union troops invaded this region by way of
Cataloochee, burning and destroying as he went. Colonel Thomas'
regiment of Cherokee met Kirk at Soco and helped drive him back
into Tennessee.

 


Beyond Soco Gap, the Blue Ridge
Parkway enters the Cherokee Indian Reservation. This reservation
comprises 50,000 acres in Swain and Jackson Counties and isolated
tracts totaling 13,000 acres in Graham and Cherokee Counties. It is
the home of the Eastern Band of Cherokee, descendants of a group of
Cherokee who fled from General Winfield Scott's soldiers in 1838
during the Indian removal and took refuge in the Great Smokies
where they defied capture. General Scott agreed to let the
fugitives remain in return for the surrender of Tsali and his
kinsmen, who had killed a soldier in making their escape. This land
was purchased for them with the New Echota, Georgia, treaty money,
by William H. Thomas, Indian agent.

The Oconaluftee (Indian for near
the river) River flows through the reservation lands, which are
mostly mountainous, though coves provide arable land. Except the
balds, the mountains are forested with hardwoods and evergreens.
This is the largest organized Indian reservation east of
Wisconsin.

 



Section 2-Y begins at
Soco Gap. Construction was begun on April 8th, 1941, and
was completed on November 13th, 1942.

 


Big Witch Gap (5.7 miles
west of Soco Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway)

Section 2-Z, the final section in
the parkway, began construction here on September 6th,
1941. Work was completed on September 6th,
1957.

 


Ballhoot Scar Overlook
(11.2 miles west of U.S. 19 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

Beyond this overlook, the Blue
Ridge Parkway enters the Great Smoky Mountain National Park. Great
Smoky Mountains National Park encloses the best surviving remnant
of the forest that once extended from the Atlantic coast to the
prairies of the Middle West. Its virgin tracts of hardwood and red
spruce total 202,000 acres, the largest in the United States. The
variety of plant life is said to be greater within the park than in
any other equal area in the temperate zone. It is estimated that
nearly 4,000 plant species are represented in the flora of the
park, of which 1,000 different kinds of flowering plants have been
identified.

Establishment of the park was
authorized by an act of Congress approved May 22nd,
1926, after citizens of North Carolina and Tennessee had worked for
many years to have the area preserved for the people. Of
$11,800,878.76 spent to buy land for the park, $2,162,283.29 was
raised by the State of North Carolina and $2,345,330.18 by the
State of Tennessee; $5,000,000 was given

by the Laura Spelman Rockefeller
Memorial and $2,293,265.29 by the U.S. Government.

The park area lies almost equally
in Tennessee and North Carolina. The axis of the reservation runs
nearly east and west; its greatest length is 54 miles and greatest
breadth 19 miles. The Great Smoky Mountains, mostly included in the
park, have lofty peaks, deep valleys, sharp ridges, dashing
streams, and dense forests. There are two cross ranges in the park
besides the Smokies, the Balsam in North Carolina and the Chilhowee
in Tennessee.

Fifty-three peaks in the park are
more than a mile high. Clingmans Dome, the highest, has an
elevation of 6,642 feet. Mount Le Conte High Top in Tennessee
appears to be the highest, for its summit, 6,593 feet above sea
level, rises 5,301 feet above its base. Other uplifts in the park
having an altitude of more than 6,000 feet include Balsam Corner,
Big Butt, Big Cataloochee, Mount Buckley, Mount Collins, Mount
Guyot, Mount Hardison, Jumpoff, Mount Kephart, Mount Le Conte Cliff
Top, Mount Le Conte, Myrtle Point, Love Peak, Luftee Knob, Old
Black, Mount Sequoyah, Thermo Knob, Tricorner Knob, and Mount
Yonaguska.

From the base to the summit of the
higher peaks are three life zones: the Carolinian or Upper Astral,
the Alleghenian Transition, and the Canadian. Because the seasons
vary with the altitude, it is possible in a short climb or ride to
observe plants in different stages of growth. There are known to be
143 species of trees in the park, more than in all of
Europe.

The Cherokee Indians have many
legends about this area, which was part of their former home.
Origin of the name Great Smoky is buried in obscurity, but it was
probably suggested to Indians or early settlers by "the tenuous
mist, a dreamy blue haze like that of Indian summer, or deeper"
that hovers almost always over the high peaks. Earliest official
Government use of the term is in the 1789 act of cession delimiting
the boundaries of North Carolina and what is now the State of
Tennessee: ". . . thence along the highest ridge of said mountains
to the place where it is called Great Iron or Smoky Mountain."
Tradition is that Hernando De Soto and his Spanish soldiers were
the first white men to see the southern highlands, which they named
for the Apalachee Indian tribe they had known in northwest
Florida.

The Great Smoky region was the
scene of early struggles between England and France for colonial
dominance. However, a large part of the area has never been
inhabited and very few white people lived there until about the
time of the War Between the States. During that conflict the ranges
were an effective barrier to invasion. Some roads within the park
are part of the interstate highway system; others are being
improved and will eventually be connected with these and with other
attractive routes in North Carolina and Tennessee and with the Blue
Ridge Parkway. Among the park roads is the Skyline Drive, which
follows the crest of the Smokies for 7 miles from Newfound Gap to
Clingmans Dome. Many trails parallel or radiate from the
roadways.

The Appalachian Trail, extending
from Mount Katahdin, Maine, to Mount Oglethorpe, Georgia, traverses
the entire length of the park along its highest ridges, following
in general the North Carolina-Tennessee boundary for a total
distance of 70 miles. The trail gives access to numerous mountain
peaks, gaps, and balds.

The park area has been largely
deserted by its inhabitants, who were chiefly descendants of
Scotch, Irish, and English pre-Revolutionary immigrants. The
picturesque log cabins and primitive gristmills of those who have
remained are now owned by the Government and occupied under lease.
Some of the primitive structures will be preserved as relics after
the area is entirely evacuated.

 


Junction with Big Cove Road
(1.6 miles west of Ballhoot Scar Overlook on the Blue Ridge
Parkway)

 


Side Trip to Old Line Tree
(Big Cove Road South, Acquiona Road South)

Big Cove Road becomes Acquiona Road
at 1.2 miles, the earlier roadbed of North Carolina Highway 107 and
later U.S. Highway 441.

Old Line Tree (1.2 miles
south on Big Cove Road, 0.2 mile south on Acquiona Road at Cherokee
High Road)

The Old Line, or Boundary, Tree is
located just north of this intersection. The tree is on the line
dividing the Qualla Indian Boundary from the Great Smoky Mountains
National Park. A concrete pillar is marked QIB. This giant poplar
bears the date July 9th, 1795. It was a corner of one of
the grants deeded to Felix Walker of "bunkum" fame, when this was a
part of Buncombe County.

 


Junction with U.S. Highway
441 (0.1 miles west of Big Cove Road on the
Blue Ridge Parkway)

The Blue Ridge Parkway ends at this
junction.

 


Side Trip to the Tennessee State
Line (U.S. Highway 441 North)

Mingus Creek (1.2 miles north on U.S. 441)

Near the confluence of Mingus Creek
and the Oconaluftee stood a log house in which, local tradition
says, Nancy Hanks, mother of Abraham Lincoln, lived, and in which
Lincoln was born. The story, if true, would make Lincoln a North
Carolinian.

Smokemont Campground (3.9
miles north on U.S. 441)

At Smokemont, the route begins an
ascent along the side of Thomas Ridge, named for Colonel William
Holland Thomas, adopted son of Chief Yonaguska and friend of the
Cherokee.

Newfound Gap (Tennessee
State Line) (16.1 miles north on U.S. 441)

Clingmans Dome Road was previously
referred to as Skyline Drive. Running west from Newfound Gap to
Clingmans Dome, the road is more than a mile high at all points,
with easy grades and rounded curves, and is regarded as a
masterpiece of engineering.

 


Points of
Interest:

Indian Gap (0.7 mile west on
Clingmans Dome Road)

Until a road was built through
Newfound Gap, Indian Gap had been the principal gap of the Smoky
Range. Through this gap passed the Tuckaleechee and Southeastern
Trail, important in war and commerce since it connected the
Overhill (Tennessee) and the South Carolina settlements of the
Cherokee Nation. Tradition is that De Soto and his band crossed
Indian Gap in 1540. Colonel William H. Thomas attempted to build a
road through the gap during the War Between the States but
abandoned the effort. In 1864, when General Robert B. Vance moved
his artillery, the dismounted cannon were dragged over the bare
stones of this precipitous course.

Near the head of Deep Creek, left
of the gap, is the region in which, according to Cherokee legend,
Ataga'Hi (Indian for the gull place}, the Enchanted Lake, lies. A
hunter coming near would know it by the sound of many wings but he
would not behold the lake unless his spiritual vision were
sharpened by prayer. In its purple waters bloom water lilies and
here the wounded birds and animals come to be healed.

From Indian Gap is a view of
Chimney Tops.

Mount Collins (3.9 miles
west on Clingmans Dome Road)

Mount Collins is named by Arnold
Guyot for Robert Collins, one of the first settlers on Oconaluftee,
gives views on the North Carolina side.

Clingmans Dome (6.9 miles
west on Clingmans Dome Road)

This is the loftiest peak in the
Smoky Mountains National Park. An observation tower gives wide
views in all directions. The mountain was known to the Indians as
Ku wa' hi (Indian for mulberry place). Under this and three nearby
mountains the bears were said to have their "town houses." Cherokee
mythology ascribes to each kind of animal a giant progenitor. The
Great White Bear was chief and doctor. The bears, believed to be
really human and able to talk when they wished, met on
Mulberry

Place to dance and converse before
going to sleep for the winter. Early white settlers called
Clingmans Dome "Smoky Dome." It is named for General Thomas Lanier
Clingman (1812-1897), Confederate general, U.S. Senator, and
explorer.

 



 


GPS COORDINATES FOR LISTED
HISTORIC SITES:

 


North Carolina State Line
(1 mile west of VA 89 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.56203,
-80.9127

Lowgap (0.6 mile east on
N.C. 18, 4 miles south on N.C. 89), 36.52564, -80.8675

Junction with U.S. Highway
21 (12.2 miles west of N.C. 18 on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
36.44779, -81.0257

Air Bellows Gap (7.6 miles
west of U.S. 21 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.42826,
-81.1271

Junction with North
Carolina Highway 18 (18.5 miles west of U.S. 21 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 36.39097, -81.2455

Junction with Primrose Lane
(0.9 mile east on N.C. 18), 36.40097, -81.2545

Laurel Springs (1.9 miles
east on N.C. 18), 36.41223, -81.2639

North Wilkesboro (21.3
miles south on N.C. 18), 36.16051, -81.1489

Wilkesboro (22.9 miles
south on N.C. 18), 36.14824, -81.1519

Courthouse (N. Bridge
Street and E. Main Street), 36.14859, -81.1504

Tory Oak (Courthouse Lawn),
36.14859, -81.1504

Cowles House , 36.14871,
-81.15

St. Paul’s Episcopal Church
, 36.14899, -81.1541

Ore Knob (2.5 miles north
on Peak Creek Church Road, 1.1 miles west on N.C. 88, 0.5 mile
north on Little Peak Road, 0.2 mile east on Ore Knob Road),
36.4005, -81.3293

Junction with North
Carolina Highway 16 (10.4 miles west of Peak Creek Church Road on
the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.31363, -81.3632

Rendezvous Mountain (10
miles south on N.C. 16, 2.5 miles west on Shingle Gap Road, 1.8
miles north on Rendezvous Mountain Road), 36.22725,
-81.2929

Junction with U.S. Highway
421 (15.1 miles west of N.C. 16 on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
36.22858, -81.4993

Cleveland Cabin (9.5 miles
south on U.S. 421, 5.3 miles east on Boone Trail, 1.5 miles north
on Parsonville Road), 36.19976, -81.3182

Three Forks Baptist Church
, 36.22044, -81.6441

Boone (3.9 miles north on
Old U.S. 421, 2.3 miles north on U.S. 421), 36.21653,
-81.6758

Appalachian State
University , 36.21456, -81.6803

Junction with U.S. Highway
321 (9.9 miles west of Elk Creek Road on the Blue Ridge Parkway at
Flat Top Road), 36.14788, -81.6627

Blowing Rock (1.3 miles
south on U.S. 321), 36.14119, -81.669

Site of Skyland Institute
(U.S. 321 Bypass at Main Street), 36.14004, -81.6695

Fort Defiance (15.7 miles
south on U.S. 321, 1 mile east on N.C. 268), 35.99022,
-81.5585

Junction with County Road
1552 (2.6 miles west of U.S. 321 on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
36.14729, -81.6996

Junction with Holloway
Mountain Road (4.1 miles west of CR 1552 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 36.13103, -81.762

Grandfather Mountain (1
mile south on U.S. 221, 2.3 miles north on Grandfather Mountain
Road), 36.09738, -81.83

Montezuma (3 miles south on
U.S. 221. 1.5 miles west on N.C. 181, 0.4 mile west on Old N.C.
181), 36.06477, -81.9025

Newland (3 miles south on
U.S. 221, 4 miles west on N.C. 181), 36.08541, -81.9283

Beacon Heights (0.2 mile
west of U.S. 221 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 36.08224,
-81.83

Junction with U.S. Highway
221 (12 miles west of Beacon Heights on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
35.96499, -81.9498

McKinney Gap (County Road
1121) (10 miles west of U.S. 221 on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
35.88508, -82.0155

Gillespie Gap (3.4 miles
west of CR 1121 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.85275,
-82.0508

Cathey’s Fort (5.3 miles
south on N.C. 226 at U.S. 221), 35.79753, -82.0326

Little Switzerland (0.1
mile south on CR 1100, 0.1 mile north on N.C. 226 Alternate),
35.85034, -82.0924

Wild Acres (0.1 mile south
on CR 1100, 2.6 miles south on N.C. 226 Alternate, 1.5 miles west
on Wild Acres Road), 35.82446, -82.1058

Gooch Gap (CR 1421) (2.4
miles west of CR 1100 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.8347,
-82.1138

Big Laurel Gap (11.1 miles
west of Gooch Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.73666,
-82.193

Mount Mitchell State Park
(4.3 miles north on N.C. 128), 35.76528, -82.2647

Balsam Gap (4.4 miles west
of Black Mountain Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.74855,
-82.3341

Junction with Elk Mountain
Scenic Highway (15.9 miles west of Balsam Gap on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 35.66424, -82.4781

Site of the Swain House (3
miles west on County Road 2053 at Governors Circle), 35.64493,
-82.519

Asheville (4.8 miles west
on U.S. 70 at U.S. 25), 35.596, -82.55

Biltmore Village (South of
the Swannanoa River at end of Biltmore Avenue), 35.56725,
-82.5438

Biltmore Estate , 35.56305,
-82.5455

Riverside Cemetery (Birch
Street), 35.60156, -82.5698

Pack Square (Biltmore
Avenue at Broadway), 35.59525, -82.5519

Zebulon Vance Monument
(Pack Square), 35.59548, -82.5514

Pack Memorial Library (4.
S. Pack Square), 35.59661, -82.5553

City Hall, 35.59536,
-82.5491

First Baptist Church (Oak
Street and Woodfin Street), 35.59828, -82.5479

St. Lawrence Church
(Haywood Street and Flint Street), 35.59724, -82.5561

McDowell House (283
Victoria Road), 35.57289, -82.5546

Grove Park Inn (Macon
Avenue on the west slope of Sunset Mountain), 35.62107,
-82.5413

Newton Academy (Biltmore
Avenue at Unadilla Avenue), 35.57573, -82.547

Junction with U.S. Highway
74 Alternate (2.2 miles west of U.S. 70 on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
35.56281, -82.4925

Fletcher (6.5 miles south
on U.S. 25), 35.43039, -82.5013

Junction with North
Carolina Highway 191 (4.8 miles west of U.S. 25 on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 35.49944, -82.5934

Mills River (8 miles south
on N.C. 191, 4 miles west on Mills River Road at Silas Sitton
Road), 35.37426, -82.6213

Ferrin Knob Tunnel No. 3
(7.9 miles west of N.C. 191 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.45434,
-82.676

Buck Spring Tunnel (5.8
miles west of Ferrin Knob Tunnel No. 3 on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
35.41761, -82.7476

Yellowstone Falls (11.7
miles west of Buck Spring Tunnel on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
35.31965, -82.8383

Reinhart Gap (10.5 miles
west of Yellowstone Falls on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.34055,
-82.971

Balsam Gap (13.7 miles west
of Reinhart Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.43439,
-83.0785

Waynesville (4.3 miles
north on U.S. 23, 2.3 miles north on U.S. 23 Business), 35.48996,
-82.9882

Soco Gap (14.4 miles west
of Balsam Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.49515,
-83.1557

Big Witch Gap (5.7 miles
west of Soco Gap on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.52404,
-83.2185

Ballhoot Scar Overlook
(11.2 miles west of U.S. 19 on the Blue Ridge Parkway), 35.51736,
-83.2845

Junction with Big Cove Road
(1.6 miles west of Ballhoot Scar Overlook on the Blue Ridge
Parkway), 35.5067, -83.2999

Old Line Tree (1.2 miles
south on Big Cove Road, 0.2 mile south on Acquiona Road at Cherokee
High Road), 35.49582, -83.3088

Junction with U.S. Highway
441 (0.1 miles west of Big Cove Road on the Blue Ridge Parkway),
35.50507, -83.3013

Mingus Creek (1.2 miles
north on U.S. 441), 35.52052, -83.3083

Smokemont Campground (3.9
miles north on U.S. 441), 35.55317, -83.3099

Newfound Gap (Tennessee
State Line) (16.1 miles north on U.S. 441), 35.61124,
-83.4247

Indian Gap (0.7 mile west
on Clingmans Dome Road), 35.611, -83.438

Mount Collins (3.9 miles
west on Clingmans Dome Road), 35.58631, -83.4726

Clingmans Dome (6.9 miles
west on Clingmans Dome Road), 35.56283, -83.4985
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Historical collections of Virginia, Henry Howe,
Babcock & Company, 1845, pg. 427-431.




iv
North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources,
http://www.ncmarkers.com/Markers.aspx?sp=map&sv=N-25
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